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Transmittal Letter 

To the Board of County Commissioners and Citizens of El Paso County: 

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish within six months of the close of each fiscal 
year a complete set of audited financial statements.  Publishing of this report is to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2007. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report, 
based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls established for this purpose.  Because the cost of internal 
control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance 
that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.  

Bondi & Co. issued an unqualified (“clean”) opinion on El Paso County’s financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2007.  The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report. 

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’ report and provides a 
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A complement this letter of 
transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

Profile of the Government 

El Paso County, incorporated in 1861 and located in the central part of the state, is one of the top growth areas in both 
the state and the country.  It currently occupies 2,158 square miles and currently serves an estimated population of 
597,632.  El Paso County is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its 
boundaries.

El Paso County operates under the County Administrator-County Commissioner form of government.  Policy-making 
and legislative authority are vested in a governing Board of County Commissioners (BoCC) consisting of the Chair, 
Vice Chair, and three other members.  The BoCC appoints the government’s manager, who in turn appoints the heads 
of various departments.  BoCC members serve four-year terms.  The BoCC consists of five elected members, one from 
each district within the County. 

El Paso County provides a full range of services, including Sheriff Operations; District Attorney Offices; Department 
of Human Services; the construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; and recreational 
and cultural activities.  El Paso County also is accountable for a legally and separate Health Department and Housing 
Authority, both of which are reported separately within El Paso County’s financial statements. 

The BoCC is required to adopt a final budget by no later than the close of the fiscal year.  This annual budget serves as 
the foundation for El Paso County’s financial planning and control.  The budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., 
public safety), and department (e.g., Sheriff Operations).  Department heads may transfer resources within a 
department as they see fit.  Transfers between departments, however, need special approval from the governing 
commissioners.
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Local economy 

Major industries located within El Paso County’s boundaries, or in close proximity, include several military bases and 
their related supporting operations, semiconductor companies, automobile dealers, large retailers, as well as several 
financial institutions, religious organizations, and insurance companies. 

Because of its location in a region with a varied economic base, unemployment is relatively stable.  During the past ten 
years, the unemployment rate has raised only a minor amount from a low of 4.1% in 1998 to 4.4% in 2007.  
Unemployment should remain stable or decrease in the near term due to a few reasons.  First, our local Economic 
Development Corporation has implemented a new active business retention program within El Paso County.  Second, 
many businesses are looking to relocate to Colorado from other larger metropolitan areas and are attracted by a need to 
provide a better quality of life for their employees.  Lastly, relocation of several military troops will take place within the
next couple of years to the military bases located within El Paso County. 

Long-term financial planning 

Unrestricted fund balance in the general fund falls within the 9.7% range and complies with the 2007 Budget 
Resolution as approved by the BoCC for budgetary and planning purposes.  The increased unfunded mandates that we 
continue to experience each year threaten our ability to maintain an adequate fund balance.  During 2007, El Paso 
County had to reduce budgets $4.1 million in order to address revenue shortfalls, provide for unfunded mandates, and 
maintain an adequate fund balance.  Given the fact that revenues have not been increasing in conjunction with these 
mandates and other cost indicators such as population increases and increases in the consumer price index, we 
continue to face reductions in our operational budgets and ultimately our service levels.  However, the Financial 
Services Department continues to assist the BoCC in addressing the funding needs required by the increasing mandated 
service requirements in an effort to fund these on-going needs within our on-going revenue sources.  

Major initiatives 

During 2007, the Terry R. Harris Judicial Building Complex has been undergoing asbestos abatement, finishing of 
additional floors for courtrooms, and adding additional required floors in the parking garage.  The old downtown 
metro jail has also been undergoing renovation to accommodate the Work Release inmates to relieve overcrowding in 
the Criminal Justice Center. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to El Paso County for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2006.  El Paso County received this award for ten consecutive years, from December 31, 1990 
through December 31, 1999 and again in 2005.  In order to be rewarded a Certificate of Achievement; the government 
had to publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR that satisfied both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current CAFR will meet the 
Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility 
for the certificate. 

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated service of the entire 
staff of the Financial Services Department.  We wish to express our appreciation to all members of our department 
who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report.  Credit must be given to the governing Board of County 
Commissioners for their unwavering support for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the 
management of El Paso County’s finances. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Un-audited)

El Paso County’s (the “County”) discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on 
significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the County’s financial activity, (c) identify changes in the 
County’s financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), (d) identify any material 
deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and (e) identify individual fund issues or concerns.  

Our discussion and analysis of El Paso County's financial performance provides an overview of the County’s 
financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.  Please read it in conjunction with the County’s 
financial statements, which begin on page 25. 

Financial Highlights 

The County’s assets increased $49.9 million to $716.2 million as of December 31, 2007. This is primarily due 
to the increase in capital assets for the Clerk and Recorder’s office, the Metro Jail, Courthouse renovations, 
and acquisition of new machinery and equipment plus increases in the current and other assets category.  

In comparing the 2007 Statement of Activities to 2006, Public Safety expenses increased $2.4 million due to an 
increase in unfunded mandates such as personnel and support staff for additional judges and courtrooms.  
Public Works increased $8.9 million as a result of catching up from delayed projects from 2006.  Health and 
Welfare increased $1.0 million due to an increase in operational levels and funding from the State.  All 
additional increases are due to the OPEB liability of $35,383,382. 

Charges for services increased a small amount of $560,445 which is attributed to a combination of a decrease 
in General Government plus an increase in Public Safety and Public Works. 

Operational Grants decreased a net of $914,328 which was a combination of an increase in one time pass-
through federal funds for the purchase of the Buffer Zone Land ($2 million) and a decrease in charitable 
contributions as pass-through funds to the Economic Development Fund (Enterprise Zone) ($1.3 million) 
along with a minor net increase to other categories of $0.2 million. 

Capital Grants decreased $18.4 million from 2006.  The major change was in Public Works decreasing $16.6 
million due to much less construction and development occurring in 2007. 

Sales tax collections came in at a minor percentage (0.92%) over 2006 which is a direct result of what is 
occurring locally in our economy. This minor increase over 2006 was below 2007 budgeted projections by $3.5 
million prompting a mid-year budget reduction of $2.5 million and indirect cost recovery from other funds of 
$1.6 million. 
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Using this Annual Report 

The following graphic is provided to outline the composition of our financial statements. 

Management Discussion and Analysis
(required supplementary information)

 Government-wide Fund financial 
 financial statements statements

(pages 25-27) (pages 29-41)

Notes to the financial statements 
(pages 43-66) 

Required supplementary information 
(other than MD&A) 

 (pages 67-76) 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements.  The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities (on pages 25 through 27) provide information about the activities of the County as a whole and present a 
longer-term view of the County’s finances.  Fund financial statements start on page 29.  For governmental 
activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for 
future spending.  Fund financial statements also report the County’s operations in more detail than the 
government-wide statements by providing information about the County’s most significant funds.  The remaining 
statements provide financial information about activities for which the County acts solely as a trustee or agent for 
the benefit of those outside of the government.   

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the County as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies.  The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the government’s 
assets and liabilities.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of 
Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.  

These two government-wide statements report the County’s net assets and how they have changed.  You can think 
of the County’s net assets, the difference between assets and liabilities, as one way to measure the County’s 
financial health, or financial position.   

Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s net assets are an indicator of whether its financial health is 
improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

To assess the overall health of the County, you will need to consider additional non-financial factors, such as 
changes in the County’s property tax base and the condition of the County’s roads. 

The government-wide financial statements of the County are divided into three categories: 

Governmental activities - Most of the County’s basic services are included here, such as sheriff, public 
works, health and welfare, auxiliary services and general administration.  Taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues finance most of these activities. 
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Business-type activities - The County charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of certain services 
it provides.  The County’s Solid Waste Management and Land Development Review are included here. 

Component units - The County includes six other entities in its report: 

The El Paso County Sheriff Special Investigation Fund is a fund governed by the El Paso County Sheriff’s 
department and was established to account for money received from public nuisance seizures.  This fund 
is legally separate from the County.   

The District Attorney Offices of the Fourth Judicial District (comprised of both El Paso County and 
Teller County) is a legally separate entity.  

The El Paso County Retirement Plan exists for the purpose of being a cost sharing, multiple-employer 
benefit plan for all full-time employees.   

The El Paso County Facilities Corporation exists as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of 
Colorado which was organized to acquire real estate, property and improvements for lease to the County 
and, upon the prior approval of a majority of the memberships of the Board of County Commissioners of 
the County, to borrow money and to become indebted and to execute and deliver bonds, notes, and 
debentures to evidence such indebtedness, for the purpose of acquiring such real personal property, 
constructing or installing such improvements, and for such other purposes as may be necessary to 
accomplish the objectives of the Corporation.   

The El Paso County Department of Health and Environment is a quasi-municipal organization organized 
by authority of State Statutes and Resolution of the County Commissioners.  

The El Paso County Housing Authority was established by the Commissioners and exists in order to help 
promote availability of decent, safe, and sanitary dwelling accommodations in the County to low-income 
families.

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County’s most significant funds-not 
the County as a whole.  Funds are accounting devices that the County uses to keep track of specific sources of 
funding and spending for particular purposes. 

Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants. 

The Board of County Commissioners establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular 
purposes or to show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants. 

The County has three types of funds:

Governmental funds - Most of the County’s basic services are included in the governmental funds, which 
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) 
the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.  Consequently, the governmental funds statements 
provide a detailed short-term view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources 
that can be spent in the near future to finance the County’s programs.  Because this information does not 
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, additional information is 
provided at the bottom of the governmental funds statements, or on the subsequent page, that explains the 
relationship (or differences) between them.   
Proprietary funds - Services for which the County charges customers a fee are generally reported in 
proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long-term and short-
term financial information.   
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Enterprise funds are the same as its business-type activities, but provide more detail and additional 
information, such as cash flows.  

Internal service funds are used to report activities that provide supplies and services for the County’s 
other programs and activities. 

Fiduciary funds - The County is the trustee, or fiduciary for other assets that, because of a trust arrangement, 
can be used only for the trust’s beneficiaries.  The County is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported 
in these funds are used for their intended purposes.  All of the County’s fiduciary activities are reported in a 
separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets.  These activities 
are excluded from the County’s government-wide financial statements because the County cannot use these 
assets to finance its operations.

Financial Analysis of the County as a Whole 

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund, accounting for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another funds.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the 
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $14,729,641 of which $13.9 million is designated for cash flows 
representing only 37 days of cash flow at the end of 2007.  The undesignated fund balance of $500,188 represents 
the amount of funds available to the Board of County Commissioners to be used to address any emergency items 
that occur in the subsequent year. 

The Road and Bridge Fund accounts for construction and maintenance of County roads and bridges financed by 
property taxes, highway user fees, and other revenues restricted to use on roads and bridges.  At the end of the 
current fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance of the Road and Bridge Fund was $9,798,987 which is slightly 
lower than 2006. 

The Social Services Fund accounts for the federal and state public welfare programs administered by the County 
and financed by grants, intergovernmental reimbursements, and property taxes.  While there is only a small fund 
balance report at the end of the fiscal year, the Social Services Fund is currently operating with an advance from 
the State of Colorado for cash flow purposes in the amount of $2,273,349.  

The Capital Project Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major 
capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds.  In 2007, our fund balance increased due to funds 
held on behalf of ongoing construction project funded by COP’s.  These projects include the completion of 
additional courtrooms in the Judicial Complex and additional floors in our newest Parking Structure.   
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Net assets - The County’s combined net assets were $479.0 million in 2007.  Looking at the net assets and net 
expenses of governmental and business-type activities separately, however, two very different stories emerge.  The 
following focuses on the net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table 2, next page) of the County’s 
governmental and business-type activities.

Table 1 
El Paso County’s Net Assets 

(in millions)

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Current and other assets 129.9$  95.7$   3.0$     3.7$     132.9$  99.4$   
Capital assets 586.3   566.9   1.4       1.4       587.7   568.3

Total assets 716.2   662.6   4.4       5.1       720.6   667.7
$716.2 662.6

Long-term debt outstanding 182.2   107.0   0.3       0.3       182.5   107.3
Other liabilities 59.2     55.4     0.1       0.2       59.3     55.6     

Total liabilities 241.4   162.4   0.4       0.5       241.8   162.9

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 568.2   473.8   1.4       1.4       569.6   475.2
Restricted 11.6     5.8                         11.6     5.8
Unrestricted (104.9)  20.6     2.7       3.2       (102.2)  23.8     

Total net assets 474.9$  500.2$ 4.1$    4.6$    479.0$  504.8$

Primary GovernmentActivitiesActivities
Governmental Business-Type Total

For information that is more detailed see the Statement of Net Assets on page 25. 

Normal Impacts 

There are six basic (normal) transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of Net Assets summary 
presentation to the fund financial statements. 

Net Results of Activities - which will affect (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted net assets.  

Borrowing for Capital - which will increase current assets and long-term debt. 

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital - which will reduce current assets and increase capital assets.  
There is a second impact, an increase in invested in capital assets and an increase in related net debt, which will not 
change the invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 

Spending of Non-Borrowed Current Assets on New Capital - which will (a) reduce current assets and increase 
capital assets and (b) will reduce unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital assets, net of related debt.  

Principal Payment on Debt - which will (a) reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt and (b) reduce 
unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation - which will reduce capital assets and invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt. 
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Net assets of the County’s governmental activities were $474.9 million.  However, most of those net assets either 
are restricted as to the purposes they can be used for or are in capital assets (buildings, roads, bridges, and so on).  
An unrestricted net asset is the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without 
constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements.  Unrestricted net assets 
showed a $(104.9) million deficit at the end of this year.  This deficit is the result of having fewer current available 
resources than long-term commitments.  The County is required to maintain an “emergency reserve” in the 
amount of 3% of “fiscal year spending less debt service”.  This “reserve” can be used to meet any emergency 
except those caused by economic conditions, revenue shortfalls and salary or fringe benefits increases.  
Accordingly, the amount of this emergency “reserve” at December 31, 2007 is $5,023,758 million. 

Changes in net assets - The County’s total revenues were $217.1 million for 2007.  Approximately 11.1% of the 
County’s revenues come from charges for services.  The total cost of all programs and services was $243.1 million. 

Table 2 
Changes in El Paso County’s Net Assets 

(in millions)

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
REVENUES
Program revenues

Charges for services 21.0$   21.5$   2.8$     3.0$     23.8$   24.5$   
Operating grants 57.1     58.0                       57.1     58.0     
Capital grants 15.4     27.0                       15.4     27.0     

General revenues
Property taxes 36.7     35.5                       36.7     35.5     
Sales tax 69.1     68.5                       69.1     68.5     
Other taxes 9.9       11.4                       9.9       11.4     
Other revenues 4.9       3.2       0.5       0.7       5.1       3.4

Total revenue 214.1$  225.1$  3.3$     3.7$     217.1$  228.3$
$217.1

EXPENSES
General government 58.4$   49.6$   $        $        58.4$   49.6$   
Public safety 85.9     68.3                       85.9     68.3     
Public works 18.0     15.1                       18.0     15.1     
Health and welfare 59.1     54.1     0.8       0.7       59.9     54.8     
Culture and recreation 3.8       3.0                3.8       3.0
Auxiliary services 1.3       0.3       3.1       3.5       4.4       3.8
Outside agencies 6.1       6.6                6.1       6.6
Interest on long term debt 6.6       4.6       6.6       4.6

Total expenses 239.2$  201.6$  3.9$     4.2$     243.1$  205.8$
$243.1

Increase (decrease) in net
assets before transfers (24.9)    23.6     (1.0)      (0.9)      (25.9)    22.7     

Transfers (0.4)      (0.5)      0.4       0.5
Increase (decrease) in net

assets (25.3)$  23.1$  (0.6)$   (0.4)$   (25.9)$  22.7$
Ending Net Assets 474.9$  500.2$  4.0$     4.6$     478.9$  504.8$

Activities Activities Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type Total



County of El Paso – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2007      19

Governmental Activities 

There are eight basic impacts on revenues and expenses as reflected below. 

Revenues:

Economic Condition - which can reflect a declining, stable or growing economic environment and has a 
substantial impact on property, sales, or other tax revenue as well as public spending habits for building permits, 
elective user fees and volumes of consumption. 

Increase/Decrease in Board approved fees - the County Commissioners have significant authority to impose 
and periodically increase/decrease fees. 

Changing Patterns in Intergovernmental and Grant Revenue (both recurring and non-recurring) - certain 
recurring revenues (state revenue sharing, etc.) may experience significant changes periodically while non-recurring 
(or one-time) grants are less predictable and often distorting in their impact on year to year comparison.

Market affects Investment Income - the County’s investment portfolio is managed using a variety of maturities 
and the market condition may cause investment income to fluctuate as a result. 

Expenses:

Introduction of New Programs - within the functional expense categories, individual programs may be added or 
deleted to meet changing community needs. 

Increase in Authorized Personnel - changes in services demand may cause the Commissioners to 
increase/decrease authorized staffing. 

Salary increases (cost of living, merit and market place adjustment) - the ability to attract and retain trained 
and educated resources requires the County to strive to approach a competitive salary range position in the 
marketplace.

Inflation - while overall inflation appears to be reasonably modest, the County is a major consumer of certain 
commodities such as chemicals and supplies, fuels, and parts.  Some functions may experience unusual commodity 
specific increases. 

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the County’s four largest programs-public safety, public works, health and 
welfare and culture and recreation - as well as each program’s net cost (total cost less fees generated by the 
activities and intergovernmental aid).  The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the County’s 
taxpayers by each of these functions. 

Some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs, or other governments and 
organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions. 

Table 3 
Net Cost of El Paso County’s Governmental Activities 

(in millions) 

2007 2006 2007 2006
Public safety 85.9$   68.3$   73.1$   54.8$
Public works 18.0     15.1     1.3       (11.1)
Health and welfare 59.1     54.1     21.0     15.0
Culture and recreation 3.8       3.0       2.0       1.2
Total 166.8$ 140.5$ 97.4$  59.9$

of Services of Services
Total Cost         Net Cost (Revenue)



20      County of El Paso – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds 

As the County completed the year, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $70.6 million.  
However, included in this year’s total change in fund balance was a $11.3 million decrease in the Capital Fund due 
to construction expenditures for major capital projects. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Over the course of the year, the County Commissioners revised the County’s General Fund Budget with a total of 
111 resolutions for a net increase of $6,673,376.  The ten largest budget resolutions follow and total $6,653,928.  
The remaining resolutions with a total of $19,448.  The El Paso County Board of Commissioners approved 
Resolution 07-456 for budget reductions to balance 2007 budget in the amount of $2,473,406, offsetting the 
balance of remaining resolutions. 

Resolution 07-98 was approved in the amount of $2,165,570 to complete the purchase of buffer zone land for 
the Fort Carson United States Military Reservation., per Phase II of Resolution 05-501. 

Resolution 07-78 was approved to reappropriate $1,332,771 of 2006 projects in process but not yet completed 
and for items ordered but not received.  These purchases and projects were scheduled to be completed during 
2007.

Resolution 07-117 was approved in the amount of $848,040 to authorize the Sheriff’s Office to hire six sworn 
and six civilian employees to staff the Work Release Tent. 

Resolution 07-73 was approved in the amount of $755,085 to appropriate 2006 General Fund Designated 
funds into the 2007 Budget for various designated projects at the Sheriff’s Office and the Clerk and Recorder’s 
Office.

Resolution 07-280 was approved in the amount of $419,484 from the fund balance of the General Fund to 
cover the cost of additional leave compensation among General Fund supported departments. 

Resolution 07-329 was approved in the amount of $275,854 for the Department of Justice Services, contract 
revenue from the Colorado Department of Public Safety, Division of Criminal Justice, for the purpose of 
providing community corrections services through subcontractors. 

Resolution 07-421 was approved in the amount of $250,000 for the Clerk and Recorder’s Office for the 
additional $2 Clerk Motor Vehicle Fee effective September 1, 2007. 

Resolution 07-243 was approved in the amount of $225,000 for the Department of Justice Services, contract 
revenue from the Colorado Department of Corrections for the Community Corrections Intensive Supervision 
Program (ISP). 

Resolution 07-360 was approved in the amount of $200,000 for the Facilities’ Board Approved Projects 
Budget for the purpose of purchase and setup of a modular office for the Coroner’s Office. 

Resolution 07-350 was approved in the amount of $182,124 for the Department of Justice Services, contract 
revenue from the Colorado Department of Public Safety, Division of Criminal Justice, for the purpose of 
providing community corrections services through subcontractors. 
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

At the end of 2007, the County had invested $660.7 million in a broad range of capital assets, including land, 
buildings, equipment, infrastructure, park facilities, etc. (See Table 4.) 

Table 4 
El Paso County Capital Assets 

(in millions)

2007 2006

Land 14.1$   14.1$
Construction in progress 7.9       93.9
Buildings & improvements 179.0   91.3
M achinery and equipment 57.4     55.3
Infrastructure 402.3   382.4

Total 660.7$ 637.0$

Activities
Governmental

El Paso County’s investments in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of 
December 31, 2007, amounts to $587.7 million (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings and systems, improvement, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, 
highways, and bridges. 

Major capital asset events during the current financial year included the following: 

During 2007 there was $3,055,520 for the purchase of the Clerk and recorder’s office on Powers Blvd. 

During 2007 there was $297,982 of construction in progress for the Metro Jail.  

During 2007 there was $443,580 of construction in progress for the Clerk and Recorder’s Office.  

During 2007 there was $743,816 of construction in progress for the Courthouse renovations.  

During 2007 there was $229,476 of construction in progress for the Parking Structure.  

During 2007 there was $4,653,458 for Machinery and equipment and vehicles.  

During 2007 there was $19,866,974 for infrastructure. 
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Infrastructure Assets 

El Paso County has elected to use the modified approach to account and report on infrastructure assets.  The 
current condition levels were used to determine our targeted levels.  Due to the lack of available additional funds, it 
is the goal of management to maintain our current infrastructure at the following condition levels: 

Targeted condition levels
Good   not less than 69%
Fair      not less than 23%
Poor      not less than 4%
Unknown not more than 4%

For our most recent assessment done in 2006, our condition distribution was:
Good 70%
Fair 24%
Poor 5%
Unknown 1%
Our next assesment will be completed in 2009.

Additional information on El Paso County’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial statements of 
this report on pages 50, 56, 57, and 66. 

Long-term Debt 

During 2007, El Paso County had a net reduction in long-term debt accounts of $50,081,231.  Additional 
information about El Paso County’s long-term debt is presented in the notes to the financial statements, 
particularly Note C5. 

There have not been any significant changes subsequent to 12/31/07 to report. 

Contacting the County’s Financial Management 

The purpose of this financial report is to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of the County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability for the money it receives.  If 
you have questions about this report or the reports of our component units, or need additional financial 
information, contact the County Financial Services Office, at El Paso County, 27 E. Vermijo, Fifth Floor, 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903 
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Basic Financial Statements
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Governmental-Wide Financial Statements
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Statement of Net Assets 

December 31, 2007 

El Paso County The El Paso
Business- Department of County

Governmental type Health and Housing
Activities Activities Total Environment Authority

ASSETS
Cash and investments 40,453,391$   2,390,583$     42,843,974$   3,390,055$     2,409,397$     
Receivables

Property taxes 42,858,470 42,858,470
Accounts 3,302,946 236,404        3,539,350     26,631
Intergovernmental 19,644,350 49               19,644,399   2,216,861
Interest                20,106
Notes 3,394,107

Internal balances (383,896) 383,896        
Inventories 1,988,026 1,988,026     
Prepaid items 381,652 381,652        40,977 183
Restricted cash and investments 19,535,663 19,535,663
Unamortized issuance costs 2,080,785 2,080,785     
Capital assets, not depreciated 424,335,217 424,335,217
Capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation 162,033,801  1,358,758     163,392,559  309,907

Total assets 716,230,405  4,369,690     720,600,095  5,984,431 5,823,793

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 10,135,847 74,708 10,210,555 739,294 7,807
Due to other governments 2,306,319 2,306,319
Interest payable 463,281 463,281
Accrued liabilities 3,376,589 3,376,589 1,293,341 2,272
Deferred revenue 42,859,393 42,859,393 220,261
Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year 5,494,042 18,978 5,513,020
Due in more than one year 176,666,384 268,452 176,934,836 276

Total liabilities 241,301,855 362,138 241,663,993 2,252,896 10,355

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 568,270,750 1,358,758 569,629,508 309,907
Restricted for:

Declared emergencies 5,023,758 5,023,758 545,278
Debt service 6,627,053 6,627,053

Unrestricted (104,993,011) 2,662,302 (102,330,709) 2,876,350 5,813,438

Total net assets 474,928,550$ 4,021,060$    478,949,610$ 3,731,535$     5,813,438$    
474,928,550 4,021,060 478,949,610 3,731,535 5,813,438

$                  $                  $5.0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Government Component Units
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Statement of Activities 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
  Governmental activities
    General government 58,370,104$        15,965,622$        2,742,896$          
    Public safety 85,943,749 3,266,421 9,622,956 2,439
    Public works 17,968,376 602,212 698,542 15,339,628
    Health and welfare 59,075,189 383,931 37,655,357  
    Culture and recreation 3,774,357 542,084 1,176,878 27,970
    Auxiliary services 1,255,626 2,400  
    Outside agencies 6,132,634 213,393 5,221,251  
    Interest on long-term debt 6,578,057   

            Total governmental activities 239,098,092 20,973,663 57,120,280 15,370,037

  Business-type activities
    Solid waste management 794,749 846,968   
    Land development 3,120,259 1,957,808   

            Total business-type activities 3,915,008 2,804,776   

Total primary government 243,013,100$      23,778,439$       57,120,280$        15,370,037$       

Component units: $2.6
    Health department 26,044,731$        2,950,898$          20,666,184$        $                        
    Housing authority 904,808 202,343 671,318

Total component units 26,949,539$       3,153,241$         21,337,502$        $                       

$243.0 General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Specific ownership tax
Highway users tax 
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets

Total general revenues

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net assets
Net assets - January 1
Prior period adjustment 
Net assets - December 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Program Revenues
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El Paso County The El Paso
Department of County

Governmental Business-type Health and Housing
Activities Activities Total Environment Authority

(39,661,586)$        $                       (39,661,586)$       $                        $                        
(73,051,933)  (73,051,933)   

(1,327,994)  (1,327,994)   
(21,035,901)  (21,035,901)   

(2,027,425)  (2,027,425)   
(1,253,226)  (1,253,226)   

(697,990)  (697,990)   
(6,578,057)  (6,578,057)   

(145,634,112)  (145,634,112)   

 52,219 52,219   
 (1,162,451) (1,162,451)   

 (1,110,232) (1,110,232)   

(145,634,112)$      (1,110,232)$         (146,744,344)$      $                       $                       

$                        $                        $                        (2,427,649)$         $                        
 (31,147)

$                        $                        $                       (2,427,649)$        (31,147)$             

36,748,742  36,748,742  
69,146,880  69,146,880  

640,777  640,777  
9,291,183  9,291,183  
4,818,667 139,961 4,958,628 197,225 216,790

80,732  80,732  

120,726,981 139,961 120,866,942 197,225 216,790

(383,896) 383,896   

120,343,085 523,857 120,866,942 197,225 216,790

(25,291,027) (586,375) (25,877,402) (2,230,424) 185,643
500,219,577 4,607,435 504,827,012 5,961,959 5,627,795

474,928,550$       4,021,060$          478,949,610$       3,731,535$         5,813,438$          
474,928,550$       4,021,060$          478,949,610$       3,731,535$          5,813,438$          

Primary government
Net (expense) revenue and changes in net assets
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Fund Financial Statements
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet 
December 31, 2007 

General Road Human
Fund and Bridge Services

ASSETS
Cash and investments 7,992,651$               9,080,629$               894,290$                  
Taxes receivable 23,867,855 7,591,294
Accounts receivable 1,438,669 27,703 69,568
Due from other funds 1,707,779 719 266,195
Due from other governments 13,135,015 1,890,131 3,408,435
Inventories 267,731 1,015,694   
Prepaid items 100,652
Restricted cash and investments 628

Total assets 48,510,352 19,606,170 4,639,116

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 3,638,197 549,759 1,231,138
Accrued wages 11,799 94,832 6,440
Due to other funds 652,307 39,962 957,291
Due to other governments 32,970 2,273,349
Deferred revenue 23,868,778 7,591,294

Total liabilities 28,171,081 8,308,817 4,468,218

Fund Balances:
Reserved $5.0

Declared emergencies 5,023,758
Encumbrances 217,489 482,672
Inventories 267,731 1,015,694
Prepaid items 100,652
Debt service
Construction

Unreserved
Designated for cash flows 13,902,067
Designated for subsequent year's

expenditures 327,386
Capital projects fund

Designated for subsequent year's
expenditures/cash flows

Special revenue funds
Designated for subsequent year's

expenditures/cash flows 3,692,810 170,898
Undesignated 500,188 6,106,177

Total fund balances 20,339,271 11,297,353 170,898
20,339,271 11,297,353 170,898

Total liabilities and fund balances 48,510,352$              19,606,170$              4,639,116$               

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
Projects Funds Funds

16,049,928$              4,626,358$               38,643,856$              
7,467,544 3,931,777 42,858,470

1,758,068 3,294,008
33,659 2,008,352

828,159 19,261,740
1,283,425

100,652
19,535,035 19,535,663
43,052,507 11,178,021 126,986,166

596,366 2,712,582 8,728,042
113,071

757,712 2,407,272
2,306,319

7,467,544 3,931,777 42,859,393
8,063,910 7,402,071 56,414,097

5,023,758
15,453,562 463,595 16,617,318

1,283,425
100,652

6,627,053 6,627,053
12,907,982 12,907,982

13,902,067

327,386

1,622,248 5,485,956
1,690,107 8,296,472

34,988,597 3,775,950 70,572,069
34,988,597 3,775,950 70,572,069
43,052,507$               11,178,021$               126,986,166$            

11,178,021$                     

6,627,053 $70.6
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Governmental Funds 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the 
Statement of Net Assets 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets (page 25)
are different because:

Fund balances - total governmental funds (page 31) 70,572,069$       
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds. 576,915,528
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet management

and insurance programs to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of the internal
service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. (29,169,026)

Interest receivable that is not available to pay for current period expenditures and, 
therefore, is not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds.  The details of this difference are as follows:

Accrued interest payable (463,281)
Compensated absences payable (13,367,412)
Certificates of participation payable (129,567,254)
Unamortized premium (to be amortized as interest expense) (1,647,359)
Elimination of due to/from interfund balances (425,500)
Unamortized issuance costs (to be amortized over life of debt) 2,080,785

Net assets - governmental activities (page 25) 474,928,550$
474,928,550

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenues and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the year ended December 31, 2007 

General Road Human
Fund and Bridge Services

REVENUE
Property taxes 11,123,814$              8,250,816$               6,446,458$               
Sales taxes 69,146,880
Specific ownership taxes 640,777
Highway user taxes 9,291,183
Intergovernmental 11,599,980 1,155,612 30,293,394
Fees and fines 568,611
Licenses and permits 289,866
Charges for services 15,444,239 459,681
Investment earnings 2,385,381 584,476
M iscellaneous 2,473,954 22,732 141,371

Total revenues 113,032,725 20,405,277 36,881,223
113,032,725 20,405,277 36,881,223

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 38,013,692
Public safety 55,035,463
Public works 15,876,121
Health and welfare 4,822,655 39,236,379
Culture and recreation 2,004,251
Outside agencies  
Auxiliary services 581,234

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges

Capital outlay 1,111,981 2,825,902 32,447

Total expenditures 101,569,276 18,702,023 39,268,826
101,569,276 18,702,023 39,268,826

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 11,463,449 1,703,254 (2,387,603)

11,463,449 1,703,254 (2,387,603)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from issuance of certificates

of participation (COP)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 78,291
Transfers in 1,500,735 3,305,016
Transfers out (14,193,099) (1,965,256) (746,515)

Total other financing sources (uses) (12,614,073) (1,965,256) 2,558,501
(12,614,073) (1,965,256) 2,558,501

Net change in fund balances (1,150,624) (262,002) 170,898
(1,150,624) (262,002) 170,898

Fund balances - January 1 21,489,895 11,559,355 0
Fund balances - December 31 20,339,271$            11,297,353$            170,898$                

20,339,271 11,297,353 170,898

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
Projects Funds Funds

7,249,650$               3,678,004$               36,748,742$              
69,146,880

640,777
9,291,183

10,463,938 53,512,924
267,743 836,354

289,866
15,903,920

1,708,097 108,043 4,785,997
5,280,501 7,918,558

8,957,747 19,798,229 199,075,201

115,323 5,446,677 43,575,692
19,049 11,539,291 66,593,803

15,876,121
7,589,672 51,648,706

832,984 2,837,235
5,473,129 5,473,129

581,234

3,375,000 3,375,000
6,588,783 6,588,783
5,719,720 540,496 10,230,546

15,817,875 31,422,249 206,780,249

(6,860,128) (11,624,020) (7,705,048)

39,429,749 39,429,749
78,291

11,833,237 16,638,988
(118,014) (17,022,884)

39,429,749 11,715,223 39,124,144

32,569,621 91,203 31,419,096

2,418,976 3,684,747 39,152,973
34,988,597$             3,775,950$              70,572,069$            
34,988,597 3,775,950 70,572,069
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 El Paso County, Colorado 
Governmental Funds 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 26) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 35) 31,419,096$
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities,

the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.  The details of this difference are as follows:

Capital outlay 10,230,546
Depreciation (6,998,570)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and
donations) is to increase net assets.  The details of this difference are as follows:

Donations of capital assets increase net assets in the statement of activities, but do not appear in
the governmental funds because they are not financial resources. 15,002,357

Transfers and capital purchases from general government operating
In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is reported.  However, in

the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources.  Thus, the change
in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets sold. (136,062)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., leases, certificates of participation) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums and
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas, these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities.  The details of this difference are as follows:

Debt issued or incurred:
Certificates of participation issued (39,429,749)
Premiums on insurance of certificates of participation (1,321,765)
Principal repayments 3,375,000
Amortization of debt premium (101,606)
Amortization of issuance costs

Payment of capital leases as a reduction of long term debt 115,879
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial

resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  The detail of
those expenses follow:

Compensated absences (98,582)
Accrued interest 10,726

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet management and
insurance programs to individual funds.  The net revenue of certain activities of internal service
funds is reported with governmental activities. (36,965,467)

Elimination of due to/from interfund balances (425,500)
Interest receivable that is not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, is not

reported in the funds. 32,670

Change in net assets - governmental activities (page 27) (25,291,027)$
25,291,027

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Net Assets 
December 31, 2007 

Governmental
Business-type Activities-

Activities- Internal
Enterprise Service

Funds Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments 2,390,583 $           1,809,534 $           
Accounts receivable 236,404 8,938
Intergovernmental receivable 50 382,610
Due from other funds 1,561 893,779
Prepaid expenses 281,000
Inventories 704,601

Total current assets 2,628,598 4,080,462

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,358,757 9,453,492

Total assets 3,987,355 13,533,954

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 74,708 1,407,803 
Accrued liabilities 3,263,518 
Capital lease obligation 623,307 
Compensated absences 18,978 16,820 
Due to other funds 43,163 453,255 

Total current liabilities 136,849 5,764,703 

Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital lease obligation 1,246,624 
Compensated absences 268,452 308,269 
Other postemployment benefits 35,383,382 

Total current liabilities 268,452 36,938,275 

Total liabilities 405,301 42,702,978 

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 1,358,757 9,453,492 
Unrestricted 2,223,297 (38,622,516)

Total net assets 3,582,054$          (29,169,024)$        

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal 
service fund activities related to enterprise funds 439,006 

Total net assets - business-type activities (page 25) 4,021,060$          
(4,021,060)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Fund Net Assets 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Governmental
Business-type Activities-

Activities- Internal
Enterprise Service

Funds Funds
Operating revenues

Charges for services 2,804,776$           18,221,876$          

Operating expenses
Insurance premiums 821,795
Claim settlements 50,623,146
Depreciation 158,269 1,742,877
Administration and operations 4,182,237 10,004,200

Total operating expenses 4,340,506 63,192,018

Operating income (loss) (1,535,730) (44,970,142)

Nonoperating revenues/expenses
Taxes 7,562,653
Investment Earnings 139,961
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 255,371
M iscellaneous 186,651

Total nonoperating revenues/expenses 139,961 8,004,675

Income (loss) before transfers (1,395,769) (36,965,467)

Transfers in 504,907
Transfers out (121,011)

Change in net assets (1,011,873) (36,965,467)

Net assets - January 1 4,593,927 7,796,443
Net assets - December 31 3,582,054$          (29,169,024)$         

Change in net assets (1,011,873)

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal 
service fund activities related to enterprise funds 425,498

Total net assets - business-type activities (page 27) (586,375)$            
586,375

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Governmental
Business-type Activities-

Activities- Internal
Enterprise Service

Funds Funds Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 2,808,813$    357,404$      3,166,217$
Receipts from interfund services provided 70,597 17,911,311 17,981,908
Payments to suppliers (1,484,693) (5,901,620) (7,386,313)
Payments to employees (2,240,999) (16,785,879) (19,026,878)
Payments for interfund services used (588,463) (2,834,829) (3,423,292)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (1,434,745) (7,253,613) (8,688,358)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Taxes received  7,562,653 7,562,653
Transfers in 383,896 383,896

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 383,896 7,562,653 7,946,549

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sales of capital assets 265,073 265,073
Capital expenditures (129,507) (3,113,060) (3,242,567)

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (129,507) (2,847,987) (2,977,494)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 139,961 139,961

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 139,961 139,961
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,040,395) (2,538,947) (3,579,342)

Cash and cash equivalents - January 1 3,430,978 4,348,481 7,779,459
Cash and cash equivalents - December 31 2,390,583$   1,809,534$    4,200,117$

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
  provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (1,535,730)$  (44,970,142)$ (46,505,872)$
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
M iscellaneous revenue 186,652 186,652
Depreciation expense 158,269 1,742,877 1,901,146
(Increase) decrease in assets

Accounts receivable 303 2,272,971 2,273,274
Intergovernmental receivables 3,731 157,636 161,367
Due from other funds 70,597 (310,565) (239,968)
Inventories (88,045) (88,045)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (168,390) (132,068) (300,458)
Accrued liabilities 34,315,731 34,315,731
Capital lease obligation 1,869,931 1,869,931
Compensated absences (1,437) 10,383 8,946
Due to other funds 37,912 212,881 250,793
Deferred revenue (2,521,855) (2,521,855)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (1,434,745)$  (7,253,613)$   (8,688,358)$

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities: (1,434,745)$   (7,253,613)$
Capital assets transferred from other funds 504,907$     $                504,907$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Fiduciary Funds 

Statement of Net Assets 
December 31, 2007 

Pension Trust
- El Paso Private-
County Purpose

Retirement Trust Agency
Plan Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3,849,670 $            $                        27,849,077 $          

Investments
Equities:

Domestic stocks and equity mutual funds 111,139,841
International stocks 72,778,783

Fixed income:
Fixed income mutual funds 38,287,685
U.S. government and agency securities 6,218,864
Corporate fixed income securities 15,202,798

Real estate mutual fund 32,426,655

Total investments 276,054,626

Securities lending collateral 34,299,734

Receivables
Interest and dividends 547,290
Securities sold 14,398,962
Other 79,645 4,240,638

Total receivables 15,025,897 4,240,638  

Capital assets - net 208,084

Total assets 329,438,011 4,240,638 27,849,077

LIABILITIES
Securities lending obligation 34,299,734 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 304,115 74,227
Due to other governments 20,479,108
Payable for securities purchased 1,509,778 
Escrow deposits help by trustee 516,371
Funds due to bondholders 342,507
Other 6,511,091

Total liabilities 36,113,627 74,227 27,849,077 

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits and

other purposes 293,324,384 $       4,166,411$          $                        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Fiduciary Funds 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Pension Trust
- El Paso Private-
County Purpose

Retirement Trust
Plan Funds

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Employers 6,276,030$                       $                         
Employees 6,767,934

Total contributions 13,043,964

Charges for services 523,861
Other income 15,088
Investment earnings:

Net appreciation in fair value of investments 12,542,545
Interest and dividend income 9,077,469 203,355
Securities and lending income 85,215

Total investment earnings 21,705,229 203,355

Less investment expenses (1,730,144)
Net investment income 19,975,085 203,355

Total additions 33,034,137 727,216

DEDUCTIONS
Outside agencies 793,506
Benefits 13,048,069
Refunds 2,165,062
Administrative expenses 317,524

Total deductions 15,530,655 793,506

Change in net assets 17,503,482 (66,290)

Net assets - January 1 275,820,902 4,232,701
Net assets - December 31 293,324,384$            4,166,411$                

-4166411

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Note A – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

1. Reporting entity 

El Paso County, Colorado (County) is governed by an elected five-member commission.  As required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP), these financial 
statements present the County and its component units, entities for which the government is considered 
financially accountable.  Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of 
the government’s operations and so data from these units is combined with data of the primary government.  
Each discretely presented component unit, on the other hand, is reported in a single column in the basic 
financial statements.  Each blended and discretely presented component unit has a December 31 year-end. 

El Paso County is not considered a component unit on any other financial reports. 

Blended component units

El Paso County Sheriff Special Investigation Fund
This fund was established by the El Paso County Sheriff’s Department, the Teller County Sheriff’s 
Department, the Colorado Springs Police Department, and the District Attorney’s Office for the Fourth 
Judicial District of Colorado to account for money received from public nuisance seizures and is legally 
separate from the County.  The funds are used for special investigations of organized crime, white-collar 
crime, and other illegal activity.  The fund is governed by the El Paso County Sheriff’s Department, which 
is governed by the El Paso County Board of County Commissioners. 

District Attorney Offices of the Fourth Judicial District
The District Attorney is the prosecutor for the 4th Judicial District of Colorado and is made up and 
governed by two counties, El Paso and Teller.  El Paso is the larger of the two counties and its Board of 
County Commissioners appropriates approximately 90 percent of the funding for this department's 
expenditures and services are provided almost entirely to the primary government. 

El Paso County Retirement Plan
This is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan for all full-time employees of the County.  
The Commissioners appoint two of the five members of the governing board, two members are 
employees of participating employers elected by participants, and the fifth member is the County 
Treasurer.  The County and the employees of the County contribute over 90 percent of the funds in the 
plan.

El Paso County Facilities Corporation
This is a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Colorado that was organized to acquire real 
estate, property and improvements for lease to the County, and upon the prior approval of a majority of 
the membership of the Board of County Commissioners, to borrow money and to become indebted and 
to execute and deliver bonds, notes or debentures to evidence such indebtedness, for the purpose of 
acquiring such real or personal property, constructing or installing such improvements, and for such other 
purposes as may be necessary to accomplish the objectives of the Corporation.  Members of the Board of 
County Commissioners are deemed members of the Corporation for the purpose of appointing and 
removing members of the Corporation’s Board of Directors. 

Discretely presented component units

El Paso County Department of Health and Environment
This is a quasi-municipal organization organized by authority of State Statutes and Resolution of the 
County Commissioners.  According to State Statutes, the Commissioners appoint the governing board.  
Additionally, the County appropriates significant funds to the Department’s operations.  The El Paso 
County Department of Health and Environment administers public health services for El Paso County 
residents.
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El Paso County Housing Authority
The El Paso County Housing Authority was established by the Commissioners in order to help promote 
availability of decent, safe, and sanitary dwelling accommodations in the County to low-income families.  
The Commissioners appoint the five-member governing board and can impose its will on the Authority 
through its ability to appoint, hire, reassign, or dismiss those persons responsible for the day-to-day 
operations of the Authority.  The Authority administers El Paso County’s low-income housing program. 

Financial statements of the County’s component units may be obtained from the County’s Financial Services 
Department.

2. Government-wide and fund financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.  
For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements.  Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.  Likewise, the primary 
government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary 
government is financially accountable.  Indirect costs are not allocated in the government-wide statement of 
activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment is offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, 
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  Major individual 
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

3. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements, with 
exception of the agency funds whose resources are not available for use by the County.  Revenues are 
recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants 
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider 
have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available.  “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means 
collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to pay liabilities of the current period.  The 
County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end.  Expenditures are 
recorded when the liability is incurred.  However, debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, sales taxes, and interest are susceptible to accrual.  Accruals are reported net of allowances for 
non-collectibles.  Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have 
been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. 
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The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

The general fund is the County’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The road and bridge fund accounts for construction and maintenance of County roads and bridges and drainage 
financed by property taxes, highway users fees, and other revenues restricted to use on roads and bridges. 

The human services fund accounts for the federal and state public welfare programs administered by the County 
and financed by grants, intergovernmental reimbursements, and property taxes. 

The capital projects fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major 
capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. 

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:  

Special Revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources other than for major capital projects 
that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

The El Paso County Sheriff Special Investigation Fund was established to finance special investigations to 
combat certain types of criminal activity. 

Retirement Contribution Fund is used to account for property tax revenues which are expended to provide 
the County contribution for the employee retirement plan. 

The Conservation Trust fund accounts for lottery revenue received from the State of Colorado, which is 
restricted to use for the development and maintenance of parks, trails, open space, and other recreational 
purposes.  The fund also includes other revenues dedicated to such uses. 

The Economic Development fund was established to account for contributions made by local business and 
individuals to the State Zone fund. 

The Pikes Peak Workforce Center fund was established to account for the revenues and expenditures for the 
One Stop Job Center and Jobs Training Partnership Act programs. 

The District Attorney Office of the Fourth Judicial District fund is used to account for the activities of the District 
Attorney.

Enterprise funds account for activities for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services. 

The Solid Waste Management fund was established by the Board of County Commissioners to collect tipping 
fees at privately owned landfills within the County.  The funds will be appropriated to pay for operational 
service information and equipment needed for solid waste disposal sites within the County. 

The Land Development Review Fund was established to collect and account for land development fees and 
charges and is governed by the Planning Commission that was formed in accordance with State law and 
County regulations to review planning petitions and make recommendations to the Board of County 
Commissioners on land use requests.  Functions of the Commission include the preparation of a Master 
Plan and Zoning Plan as a framework for the guidance of individual zoning and subdivision decisions for 
any part of the unincorporated areas of the County. 
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Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or agencies of the 
County, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

Because El Paso County is essentially self-insured, the Self-Insurance fund was established to account for the 
accumulation and allocation of costs associated with insurance claims and administration costs. 

The Self-Insurance Fund was established to account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated 
with insurance claims and administration costs. 

Fleet Services fund was established to provide regular vehicle and equipment maintenance and maintain 
adequate fleet inventory. 

The private-purpose trust funds are used to account for resources collected from developers of new 
subdivisions to provide for the purchase and development of additional parks and for distribution to 
school districts. 

The pension trust fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as the proprietary funds, using the 
same measurement focus and basis of accounting.  The pension trust fund accounts for the assets of the 
El Paso County Retirement Plan. 

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. 

Treasurer’s Agency Fund  accounts for the receipt and disbursement of all revenues received by the Treasurer 
for the County and all other taxing entities in the County, as well as the receipt, investment, and 
disbursement of all other revenues received by the County. 

Public Trustee Agency Fund was established to account for expenditures for the Public Trustee’s Office.  The 
Public Trustee is appointed by the Governor of Colorado for a four-year term.  This office administers 
foreclosures including issuance of Public Trustee deeds, cure of default and lien redemptions. 

Struther’s Road Agency Fund bonds were issued for construction and installation of improvements on a 
portion of Struther’s Road. 

Rancho Colorado Agency Fund bonds were issued to finance infrastructure improvements such as roads, 
drainage facilities, and water/sanitation facilities. 
The agency funds are custodial in nature and do not present results of operations or have a measurement 
focus.  These funds are used to account for assets the County holds for others in an agency capacity.  

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are 
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent those standards 
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Governments 
also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and 
enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.  The County has elected not to follow subsequent private-
sector guidance. 

The effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.  The 
interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process consolidation. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.  Internally 
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues 
include all taxes.
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds and 
internal service funds are charges to customers for sales or services.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds 
and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on 
capital assets. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

4. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity 

A. Deposits and investments

Deposits consist of cash equivalent accounts and interest-bearing bank accounts.  The County’s 
investments are authorized by Colorado Statutes that provide for the following: 

Bonds and other interest-bearing obligations of the United States government or that are 
guaranteed by the United States government. 
Bonds that are direct obligations of the State of Colorado, or any city, County, or school district 
therein.
Notes and bonds issued pursuant to the "National Housing Act." 
Repurchase agreements. 
Local government investment pools. 

Additionally, the El Paso County Retirement Plan’s (a component unit) investments authorized by 
Colorado statutes also include the following: 

Corporate notes, bonds, and debentures. 
Railroad equipment trust certificates. 
Real property. 
Loans secured by first mortgages or deeds of trust on real property. 
Participating agreements with life insurance companies. 
Equity securities subject to certain limitations. 

The pension trust cash and investments consist of cash and cash equivalent accounts, U.S. government 
securities, corporate bonds and debentures, common stocks, open-end equity mutual funds, international 
bonds, and securities lending collateral. 

Investments are stated at fair value. 

The Retirement Plan includes investments in foreign currencies, which means changes in the exchange 
rate could adversely affect the fair value of an investment.   

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County considers all highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.  Original maturity is the 
original maturity to the County. 

Except for nominal petty cash funds, all of the cash and investments for the County funds are in the 
custody of the County Treasurer.  Except when otherwise required by trust agreements, the operating 
cash of all funds is pooled into various bank accounts.  Interest income is allocated to funds on the basis 
of each fund’s participation in the pool.  Cash in excess of operating requirements is invested in U.S. 
government securities, local government investment pools, and interest-bearing bank accounts. 



El Paso County, Colorado 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2007 

50      County of El Paso – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 

B. Receivables and payables

Outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”  Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” 

Property taxes are levied on November 20 and attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of 
the tax year.  They are payable in two installments on February 28 and June 15, or in one installment due 
April 30 in the year following the tax year.  The El Paso County Treasurer bills and collects property taxes 
for itself and the other taxing authorities within the County.  Collections for other districts are accounted 
for in the County’s agency funds. 

C. Inventories and prepaid items

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method.  Inventories of the general fund consist 
primarily of supplies held for consumption and are considered expenditures when used.  Inventories of 
the Road and Bridge Fund consist of expendable parts and supplies held for consumption and are 
considered expenditures when used. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

D. Restricted assets

Certain proceeds from the County’s capital expenditures fund certificates of participation, as well as 
certain resources set aside for their repayment, are restricted because they are maintained in separate bank 
accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.  The construction fund accounts are used 
to report those proceeds of certificates of participation issuances that are restricted for use in 
construction.  The total of those accounts as of December 31, 2007, was $12,907,982.  The certificate 
fund accounts are used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve 
months.  The total of those accounts as of December 31, 2007, was $6,627,053. 

E. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the County as assets 
with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  As of December 31, 2007, the County has fully 
implemented GASB 34 and has retroactively capitalized approximately $308 million from 1980 to 2002 
related the infrastructure and land under the infrastructure.  Donated capital assets are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add 
to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.  Major outlays for capital assets 
and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.   

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:  

Assets Years
Building 40
Improvements other than buildings 25
Infrastructure 1-50
Vehicles 4-8
Furniture & fixtures 5
Equipment 8-15
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F. Compensated absences

It is the County’s policy to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused 
vacation and sick pay benefits, which will be paid to employees upon separation from County service.  All 
compensated absences liabilities are accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and 
fiduciary fund financial statements.  A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if 
they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.  In the government-
wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and 
other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-
type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.  Certificate of participation premiums and 
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the certificates of 
participation using the effective interest method.  Certificates of participation are reported net of the 
applicable premium or discount.  Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the 
term of the related debt. 

G. Long-term obligations

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize debt premiums and discounts, as well 
as issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

H. Fund equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that 
are not appropriable or are legally segregated for specific purposes.  Designations of fund balance 
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. 

Note B – Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

1. Budgetary Information 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with US GAAP for all government funds.  Proprietary funds, 
Struther’s Road and Rancho Colorado, adopt budgets using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is 
not US GAAP for those fund types.  Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all governmental funds, 
proprietary funds, and Struther’s Road and Rancho Colorado.  All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year 
end.

Appropriations in governmental funds are encumbered upon issuance of purchase orders, contracts, or other 
forms of legal commitments.  While appropriations lapse as of the end of the fiscal year, the succeeding year’s 
budget ordinance specifically provides for the re-appropriation of year-end encumbrances.  Encumbrances 
outstanding as of December 31, 2007, are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute 
expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year. 

The County’s managers may make transfers of appropriations within a fund.  Transfers of appropriations 
between funds require the approval of the Board of County Commissioners.  The legal level of budgetary 
control is the fund level.   
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The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

A. Budgets are required by state law for all funds except fiduciary fund types and the El Paso County 
Sheriff Special Investigation Fund, which is a special revenue fund.  In September, the Budget 
Division of the County’s Financial Services Department submits to the County Commissioners a 
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1.  The operating 
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

B. Public hearings are conducted by the County to obtain taxpayer comments. 

C. Prior to December 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an appropriation resolution. 

D. Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the County 
Commissioners by passage of a resolution. 

E. The El Paso County Sheriff Special Investigation Fund does not and is not required by state law to 
adopt an annual budget. 

F. The Road and Bridge Fund budgets expenditures using the natural classifications.  Therefore, a 
difference arises between the fund financial statements reflecting expenditures under US GAAP, 
under which salary expenditures may be part of capital outlay expenditures, and the budget to actual 
schedules reflecting expenditures in their natural classifications. 

G. No fund had excesses of expenditures over appropriations for the year ended December 31, 2007.  

2. Management use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results may differ from those estimates 

Note C – Detailed Notes on All Funds 

1. Deposits and investments

Deposits

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local government deposit cash 
in eligible public depositories which are determined by state regulators.  All banks used by the County for 
depository and investments are on the approved list.  Deposit amounts in excess of Federal insurance levels 
must be collateralized.   The County’s collateralized funds total $64,296,076, which includes the money market 
funds. 

PDPA allows institutions to create a single collateral pool for all public funds which is maintained by another 
institution or held in trust for all uninsured public deposits.  The market value of the collateral must be at least 
equal to 102% of uninsured deposits.  The County invests its collateral pool with the Colorado Government 
Liquid Asset Trust (ColoTrust), a local government investment pool established primarily for local 
government entities pursuant to Part 7 of Article of Title 24 of the Colorado Revised Statutes. Financial 
statements for ColoTrust may be obtained at www.colotrust.com. 

The County’s investments are subject to interest rate, credit risk and concentration of credit risk.  Management 
places all funds in high quality financial institutions to minimize our credit risk.  As a means of limiting its 
exposure, the County’s investment policy allows for investments in money market funds and certificates of 
deposits issued by banks located in Colorado under applicable Colorado Statutes and those authorized under 
the provisions of CRS, Section 24-75-601.1(k).  State investment pools authorized under CRS, Section 24-75-
701, direct obligations of the U.S. Government, Federal Instrumentality Security and prime commercial paper 
are also authorized.  In order to limit its exposure to fair value losses arising from higher interest rates, the 
County’s investment policy limits the investment maturities to five years, unless, specifically approved in 
advance by the Board of County Commissioners. 
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As of December 31, 2007, investments within the ColoTrust investment pool have an AAA rating.  The 
remaining deposits are covered by one of the following: 

1. Insured or registered, or securities held by the County or its agent in the County’s name. 
2. Uninsured and unregistered, with the securities held by the counterparty or by its trust department 

but not in the County’s name. 
3. PDPA collateral. 

All money market funds for the primary government are held by USBank and are “on balance sheet” 
accounts.

As of December 31, 2007, the County had the following investments: 

Primary Government (Including Fiduciary Funds)
Up to 121 Days Credit

Investment Type Fair Value 120 days to 5 years Rating
U. S. Treasuries 4,000,000$   1,000,000$     3,000,000$   US Govt Guar
Instrumentality: 
Federal Home Credit Bank (FFCB) 2,000,000$   2,000,000$   AAA
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 2,000,000$   2,000,000$   AAA

Total Investments controlled
by the County 8,000,000$   1,000,000$     7,000,000$
Percent of Total 12.5% 87.5%

Reconciliation to Total Deposits and Investments Ratings
Add: M oody's S&P Fitch
Cash and deposits 18,176,230$ P-1 A-1+ F1+
M oney M arket funds 9,058,598$   P-1 A-1+ F1+
ColoTrust 34,070,293$ AAAm
Total Deposits and Investments 69,305,121$ 42843974

Component Units - El Paso County Department of Health and El Paso County Housing Authority 

Fair Value Credit Rating M aturity Date Callable
ColoTrust 3,233,714$   A-1 Demand No
U. S. Treasuries 1,164,106$   US Govt Guar 2 & 5/07 No
Instrumentality:
Government National M ortgage
Association (GNM A) 131,982$      AAA 2016 Yes

4,529,802$
Cash and deposits 1,252,460$
Repurchase agreement 18,040$       

5,800,302$ 5799452

Investment M aturities 

Funds held on behalf of the Department of Health and Environment total $3,390,955. 

Continued on next page: 
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Funds held by Treasurer: 
Treasurer's agency 26,197,860$   
GWFS 41,915,073
Fiduciary & LID funds 4,583,145

72,696,078$   
Cash reflected in financials held by other institutions: 
Housing Authority 2,409,397$     
Special Investigation 928,901
Retirement Plan 3,849,670
Restricted cash held by US Bank (COP's) 19,535,035
Public Trustee 1,308,709

28,107,224$   

Total cash reflected in financials 100,803,302$

The Retirement Plan has bank balances of $748,727 and $653,286 on deposit with banking institutions at 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  Of the bank balances, $100,000 is insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation at December 31, 2007 and 2006.  In addition, $3,100,943 and $4,917,088 was held by 
the various money managers in banking institutions at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  The 
uninsured bank balances and money manager balances are collateralized with securities held by the banking 
institutions but not in the Plan’s name.  

Investments held by Retirement Plan (Fiduciary Fund): Fair Value Credit Rating
    Domestic stocks and equity mutual funds 111,139,841$
    International stocks and equity mutual funds 72,778,783$   
  Fixed Income Investments:
    Fixed income mutual fund 24,788,224$   AA+
    Fixed income mutual fund 13,499,461$   BAA-
    U.S.Government Agency securities 4,099,109$     AAA
    U.S. Treasury securities 2,119,755$     AAA
    M ortgage-backed securities 1,754,839$     AAA
    M ortgage-backed securities 1,398,468$     Unrated
    Corporate fixed income securities 825,491$       AAA
    Corporate fixed income securities 219,021$       AA
    Corporate fixed income securities 1,145,544$     AA-
    Corporate fixed income securities 1,511,670$     A+
    Corporate fixed income securities 852,760$       A
    Corporate fixed income securities 1,009,823$     A-
    Corporate fixed income securities 2,208,917$     BBB+
    Corporate fixed income securities 1,187,052$     BBB
    Corporate fixed income securities 1,052,254$     BBB-
    Corporate fixed income securities 667,461$       BB+
    Corporate fixed income securities 261,508$       BB
    Corporate fixed income securities 57,350$         B+
    Corporate fixed income securities 498,916$       B
    Corporate fixed income securities 132,000$       B-
    Other fixed income securities 419,724$       A+

Total Investments held by Retirement Plan 243,627,971$
The County’s deposit and investment policy is written in compliance with revised Colorado Statutes.  
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Blended Component Unit - Retirement Securities Lending

The Plan’s Board policies permit the Plan to lend its securities to broker-dealers and other entities with a 
simultaneous agreement to return the collateral for the same securities in the future.  The Plan’s custodian, 
Wells Fargo Bank (the Bank), lends securities for collateral in the form of cash, U.S. Government Securities, 
or letters of credit issued by a bank with a Thompson Bank Watch rating of “B” or higher.  Securities lent at 
year-end for cash collateral are presented as investments not subject to categorization in the schedule of credit 
risk above.  The Plan does not have the ability to pledge or sell collateral securities, however, there are no 
securities lent for securities collateral as of December 31, 2007. 

Cash received from all loans is commingled for investment purposes.  Such cash is invested in repurchase 
agreements, master notes, U.S. treasuries or agencies, U.S. or Euro dollar certificates of deposit and time 
deposits, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper and other short-term money market instruments, and 
mutual funds holding any of the previously mentioned securities and subject to policy and standard guidelines 
established from time to time by the Bank.  The prime considerations for the investment portfolio shall be 
safety of principal and liquidity requirements.  The weighted average maturity of these funds as of December 
31, 2007, is 7 days. 

The Bank may negotiate loans directly or through a finder for a minimum of one day but with no fixed 
maximum term, retaining the power to terminate the loan at any time unless otherwise agreed to by the Plan.  
The Plan reserves the right to pre-approve new borrowers.  There are no restrictions on the amount of 
securities that may be lent at one time. 

Each loan is required to be collateralized in the amount of 102% of the market value of the loaned security 
and accrued interest.  Collateral is marked to market daily.  If the market value of the given collateral falls to 
100% or less of the loaned security market value, the Bank immediately procures additional collateral to bring 
the collateralization back to 102%.  Collateral in excess of 102% is returned to the Borrower if requested. 

Indemnification deals with the situation in which a client’s securities are not returned due to the insolvency of 
a borrower, and the Bank has failed to live up to its contractual responsibilities relating to the lending of those 
securities.  The Bank’s responsibilities include performing appropriate borrower and collateral investment 
credit analyses, demanding adequate types and levels of collateral, and complying with applicable Department 
of Labor and Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council regulations concerning securities lending.  
The Bank indemnifies the Plan if the borrowers fail to return the securities (and if the collateral is inadequate 
to replace the securities lent) or fail to pay income distributions on them.  As of December 31, 2007, the Plan 
had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amount the Plan owes the borrowers exceed the 
amounts the borrowers owe the Plan.  The Plan had no losses on securities lending transactions resulting from 
the default of a borrower or the lending agent for the year ended December 31, 2007. 

All securities loans can be terminated on demand by either the Plan or the borrower.  The Plan is entitled to all 
cash dividends, stock dividends, stock splits, rights of distribution, conversion privileges, tender and exchange 
offers, and similar corporate actions with respect to any loaned securities as if the securities had not been 
loaned.  However, during any period when securities are loaned, the Plan waives its right to vote such 
securities.

As of December 31, 2007, the fair value of lent securities was $33,362,651.  The fair value of associated cash 
collateral was $34,299,734.  The Plan’s income, net of expenses from securities lending, was $85,215. 

2. Property taxes

The County is permitted to levy taxes on the assessed valuation for general governmental services and for the 
payment of principal and interest on long-term debt.  The combined tax rate to finance general governmental 
services for the year ended December 31, 2007, was 7.514 mills.  The County’s assessed valuation for 2007 
was $6,489,749,120.  Therefore, the County could have collected $48,763,990 for 2007 taxes.  Instead, the 
Board of County Commissioners eliminated the County’s entire portion of business personal property tax.  
The property taxes collectible in 2008 total $43,733,133 net of tax credits and refunds. 
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3. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2007, was as follows: 

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2007 Increases Decreases 2007
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 14,069,596$   $                  $                 14,069,596$
Construction in progress 93,920,475 3,007,467 (88,957,868) 7,970,074
Infrastructure 382,428,573 19,866,974 402,295,547

Total capital assets, not being
  depreciated 490,418,644 22,874,441 (88,957,868) 424,335,217

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 80,070,842 86,628,284 166,699,126
Improvements other than buildings 11,181,519 1,156,585 12,338,104
M achinery and equipment 55,342,258 4,653,458 (2,623,389) 57,372,327

Total capital assets, being depreciated 146,594,619 92,438,327 (2,623,389) 236,409,557
92.4

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (33,030,573) (2,985,875) (36,016,448)
Improvements other than buildings (1,616,620) (463,589) (2,080,209)
M achinery and equipment (35,455,801) (5,351,938) 2,417,671 (38,390,068)

Total accumulated depreciation (70,102,994) (8,801,402) 2,417,671 (76,486,725)

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 76,491,625 83,636,925 (205,718) 159,922,832

Governmental activities capital 
assets, net 566,910,269$ 106,511,366$ (89,163,586)$ 584,258,049$

584.3
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Balance Balance
  January 1, December 31,

2007 Increases Decreases 2007
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $                 $                $                $                 

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 979,968 979,968
Improvements other than buildings 83,365 83,365
M achinery and equipment 601,012 129,507 730,519

Total capital assets, being depreciated 1,664,345 129,507 1,793,852

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (116,439) (24,499) (140,938)
Improvements other than buildings (8,337) (3,335) (11,672)
M achinery and equipment (152,049) (130,435) (282,484)

Total accumulated depreciation (276,825) (158,269) (435,094)

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net  1,387,520 (28,762) 1,358,758

Business-type activities capital 
assets, net 1,387,520$    (28,762)$     $                1,358,758$

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities:
General government 3,246,187$        
Public safety 2,722,351
Public works 546,678
Health and welfare 315,200
Culture and recreation 228,109
Capital assets held by the government’s internal service 

funds are charged to the various functions based on
their usage of the assets 1,742,877

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities: 8,801,402$        

Business-type activities:
Waste management 28,782
Land development 129,487

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities: 158,269$          
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4. Inter-fund receivables, payables, and transfers 

The composition of inter-fund balances as of December 31, 2007, is as follows: 

Due to/from other funds:
Receivable fund Payable fund Amount
General Road and bridge 14,089$                

Social services 515,301
Non-major internal service funds 430,614
Non-major enterprise funds 39,079
Non-major governmental funds 708,696

Road and bridge General        
Social services 14
Non-major internal service funds
Non-major enterprise funds 705

Department of Social Services General 266,195

Non-major governmental funds General 9,922
Social services 643
Non-major governmental funds 23,094

Non-major internal service General 374,629
Road and bridge 25,873
Social services 441,334
Non-major governmental funds 28,971
Non-major internal service funds 22,641
Non-major enterprise funds 331

Non-major enterprise funds General 1,561
Road and bridge
Non-major internal service funds

Total 2,903,692$          
Inter-fund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) inter-fund goods and services are 
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) 
payments between funds are made. 

Inter-fund transfers (excluding transfers of capital assets between governmental activities and business-type 
activities):

Transfers out:
Road and Social Non-major Non-M ajor

General Bridge Services governmental enterprise
fund fund fund funds funds Total

Transfers in:
General fund $                 1,484,393$ $              16,342$        $              1,500,735$
Social Services fund 3,305,016 3,305,016
Non-major

governmental fund 10,888,083 480,863 746,515 210,948 11,735 12,338,144

Total 14,193,099$ 1,965,256$ 746,515$   227,290$      11,735$     17,143,895$
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Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires collecting them, to the fund 
that statute or budget requires to expend them, and to use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund 
to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

5. Long-term debt

A. Changes in long-term liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities of the County for the year ended December 
31, 2007. 

Beginning Ending Due within
balance Additions Reductions balance one year

12/31/2006 12/31/2007
Governmental activities:

Certificates of
participation 91,870,000$   77,850,000$ (47,455,000)$  122,265,000$ 2,885,000$
Plus issuance premium 1,388,727 363,377 (104,745) 1,647,359 104,745

Total certificates of
participation 93,258,727 78,213,377 (47,559,745) 123,912,359 2,989,745

1,716,693
Capital leases 115,880 2,340,000 (739,187) 1,716,693 623,307
Compensated absences 13,583,536 1,870,933 (1,761,968) 13,692,501 1,390,990

Governmental activities
long-term liabilities 106,958,143$ 82,424,310$ (50,060,900)$ 139,321,553$ 5,004,042$

Business-type activities:
Compensated absences 288,867$       18,894$      (20,331)$       287,430$       18,978$      

Internal service funds predominately serve the governmental funds.  Accordingly, long-term liabilities for 
them are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities.  At year-end, $325,089 of 
internal service funds compensated absences is included in the above amounts.  In addition, for 
governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund. 

B. Certificates of participation

During 1999, the County, through the El Paso County Facilities Corporation, issued $10,460,000 in 
Certificates of Participation, Series 1999, which were dated October 15, 1999.  The 1999 certificates carry 
interest rates ranging from 3.90% to 5.25% and mature December 1, 2000, through December 1, 2009. 

During 2002, the County, through the El Paso County Facilities Corporation, issued $44,865,000 in 
Certificates of Participation, Series 2002A, which were dated December 1, 2002.  The 2002A certificates 
carry interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.50% and mature December 1, 2006, through December 1, 
2027.

During 2002, the County, through the El Paso County Facilities Corporation, issued $40,110,000 in 
Certificates of Participation, Series 2002B, which were dated December 1, 2002.  The 2002B certificates 
carry interest rates ranging from 2.20% to 5.375% and mature December 1, 2005, through December 1, 
2027.

During 2004, the County, through the El Paso County Facilities Corporation, issued $6,970,000 in 
Certificates of Participation, Series 2004, which were dated June 15, 2004.  The 2004 certificates carry 
interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 4.60% and mature December 1, 2004, through December 1, 2018. 
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During 2007, the County, through the El Paso County Facilities Corporation, issued $77,850,000 in 
Certificates of Participation, Series 2007, which were dated March 15, 2007.  The 2007 certificates carry 
interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.50% and mature December 1, 2007, through December 1, 2022. 

C. Capital lease obligations

The County entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing high-speed copiers and motor graders.  
The lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded 
at the present value of future minimum lease payment as of the inception date.  The assets acquired 
through capital leases are as follows: 

Governmental
Asset: activities

M achinery and equipment 2,340,000$        
Less:  Accumulated depreciation (117,000)

Total 2,223,000$        

Amortization charges on the assets recorded under capital leases are included with depreciation 
expense.

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as 
of December 31, 2007, are as follows: 

Year ending
December 31, Amount

2008 623,307$          
2009 623,307
2010 623,307
2011 10

Total minimum lease payments 1,869,931
Less:  Amount representing interest 153,238
Present value of minimum lease payments 1,716,693$        

D. Summary of debt service requirements

The following schedule reflects debt service requirements to maturity for certificates of participation as of 
December 31, 2007: 

Year ending
December 31, Principal   Interest 

2008 2,885,000$            5,559,368$            
2009 2,975,000 5,442,643
2010 4,175,000 5,314,430
2011 4,335,000 5,151,180
2012 4,510,000 4,978,499

2013-2017 25,845,000 21,632,088
2018-2022 29,860,000 15,022,830
2023-2027 36,610,000 7,578,050
2028-2029 11,070,000 710,600

122,265,000$        71,389,688$           

Certificates
of participation

Government activities
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E. Conduit debt obligations

From time to time, the County has issued the following types of conduit debt; mortgage bonds and 
mortgage revenue refunding bonds to assist low-to-middle income residents in purchasing single family 
residences; exempt facility bonds for residential rental projects to be occupied by low- to middle-income 
residents and owned by private-sector entities; industrial revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to 
private-sector entities to promote industry and develop trade or other economic activity; and qualified 
501(c)(3) bonds to provide financial assistance to non-profits for the acquisition and construction of 
eligible facilities.  The various bonds are secured by investments under Indentures of Trust, loans that 
finance the projects, property, loan guarantees, and letters of credit.  The various bonds are payable solely 
from certain revenues and receipts pledged under the Indentures of Trust, payments received on 
underlying mortgage loans, and payments received pursuant to loan agreements.  These bonds do not 
constitute the debt or indebtedness of the County, nor is the County obligated in any manner for 
repayment of the bonds.  Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying 
financial statements.  As of December 31, 2007, the bonds outstanding had an aggregate principal amount 
payable of $271,490,491. 

F. Pollution remediation

The County is currently in the process of an asbestos abatement (removal and disposal) project of friable 
and non-friable asbestos-containing materials in accordance with applicable Federal, State and local 
requirements of the original south tower of the Terry R. Harris Judicial Complex.  This project is a direct 
result of a mandate by the State of Colorado to house additional courtrooms. 

Design and technical specifications for the asbestos removal started in 2007.  Total payment costs for 
2007 were $221,736.  The abatement is tentatively scheduled to begin on Monday, June 9, 2008, with a 
duration time of 2 -2 ½ years with a total project cost of $12,180,870.  The total cost is based off the 
contractor’s estimates.  There is the potential for the total project costs to go up due to cost of goods used 
in construction, etc.  We do not anticipate any potential recoveries to offset any of the costs. 

Note D – Other Information  

1. Risk management 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; health claims of employees; and natural disasters.  The County 
established the Self-Insurance Fund (internal service fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risks of 
loss.  Under this program, the fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of $350,000 (plus a $100,000 
corridor), $250,000, and $175,000 for each worker’s compensation claim, for each general liability claim, and 
for each health claim, respectively.  The limit of coverage on the general liability claims is $3,000,000.  The 
County purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the funds and for all 
other risks of loss.  Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal 
years.

All funds of the County participate in the program and make payments to the funds based on estimates of the 
amounts needed to pay prior- and current-year claims. Claims liabilities of $3,263,518 that are reported in the 
Self-Insurance Fund at December 31, 2007, are based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting  
Standards Board Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related 
Insurance Issues, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of 
the financial statements indicates that it is probable a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial 
statements, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.  The liabilities are actuarially determined 
and are carried at the present value of the unpaid claims using a discount rate of 3.5 percent. 
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Changes in the claims liability amounts in 2007 and 2006 were: 

Balance Claims and Balance
January 1, Changes in Claim December 31,

2007 Estimates Payments 2007
Self-Insurance Fund 4,331,169$       13,552,923$    14,620,574$    3,263,518$       

$3,263,518
Balance Claims and Balance

January 1, Changes in Claim December 31,
2006 Estimates Payments 2006

Self-Insurance Fund 3,130,923$       13,531,912$    12,331,666$    4,331,169$       

2. Deficit fund balance 

Self Insurance fund had an accumulated deficit in net assets of $37,925,099 as of December 31, 2007.  This 
internal service fund deficit pertains to incurred but not reported claims. 

3. Contingencies

A. Litigation
There are several lawsuits pending in which the County is involved.  It is the opinion of management that 
the potential outcome of such matters would not have a significant effect on the financial position of the 
County if disposed of unfavorably. 

B. Grants

The County has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit 
by the grantor agencies.  Such audits could lead to request for reimbursements to grantor agencies for 
expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grant.  Based upon prior experience, the County 
management believes such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial. 

C. TABOR

In November 1992, the people of the State of Colorado passed an amendment to the State’s Constitution 
(Article X, Section 20) known as the Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights (TABOR), which was effective December 
31, 1992.  TABOR’s intended purpose was to reasonably restrain most the growth of government by 
imposing spending and revenue limits on the state and any local government, excluding enterprises.  
Provisions of TABOR require, among other things, that: 

Each district shall reserve for use in declared emergencies 3% or more of its fiscal year spending 
(as defined by TABOR) excluding bonded debt service. 
If revenue from sources not excluded from fiscal year spending exceeds the limits prescribed by 
TABOR in dollars for that fiscal year, the excess shall be refunded in the next fiscal year unless 
voters approve a revenue change as an offset. 
Revenue collected, kept, or spent illegally since four full fiscal years before an individual or class 
action enforcement suit is filed shall be refunded with 10% annual simple interest from the initial 
conduct.
With minor exceptions, advance voter approval is required for any new tax, tax rate increase, mill 
levy above that for the prior year or creation of any multiple fiscal years direct or indirect district 
debt or other financial obligation without certain cash reserve amounts. 

The County believes it complies with the provisions of TABOR.  However, many of its provisions will 
most likely be interpreted by the judicial system and those interpretations could differ from those of the 
County.  Based upon the County’s interpretation of TABOR, for 2007 the County’s TABOR calculations 
indicate it did not exceed the fiscal year spending limit.  Accordingly, no refund or other similar measures 
are required. 
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4. Deferred compensation plans 

The Internal Revenue Code prior to August 20, 1996, required that all amounts of compensation deferred 
under the plan, all property rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those 
amounts, property, or rights be (until paid or made available for the employee or other beneficiary) solely the 
property and rights of the County (without being restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan), 
subject only to the claims of the County’s general creditors.  Plan assets and income held by the plan on or 
after August 20, 1996, must be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries, 
thereby removing the assets and income from being considered property of the County subject to the claims 
of the County’s general creditors.  As of December 31, 2007, the funds held for employees were 
approximately $25.1 million. 

5. El Paso County Retirement Plan 

A. Plan description

All permanent, full-time employees of El Paso County are eligible to participate in the El Paso County 
Retirement Plan (the Plan), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan.  The Plan has five 
participating employers.  The Plan provides benefits to members at retirement or disability, or to their 
beneficiaries in the event of death.  The El Paso County Board of Retirement is the administrator and has 
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the Plan.  The Plan issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information, including the 
required six-year trend information, for the Plan.  That report may be obtained by writing to the El Paso 
County Retirement Plan, 105 East Vermijo Ave.; Suite 200, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903, or by 
calling (719) 520-7490. 

B. Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Plan are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  Plan member 
contributions are recognized in the period in which employee services are performed.  The employers’ 
contributions are recognized when due and a formal commitment to provide the contributions has been 
made.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the 
Plan.

Method used to value investments

Marketable securities are stated at fair value.  Securities traded on a national securities exchange are valued 
at the last reported sales price on the last business day of the Plan year; investments traded in the over-
the-counter market and listed securities for which no sale was reported on that date are valued at the 
average of the last reported bid and ask price. 

C. Funding policy

The County and covered employees are each required by County Resolution to contribute 6 percent of 
the employees’ salary to the Plan.  The current County contribution rate is 6 percent of annual covered 
payroll.  The contribution requirements of Plan members and the County are established and may be 
amended by the El Paso County Board of Retirement.  The County’s contributions to the Plan for the 
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, were $5,904,704, $5,797,400, and $5,361,917 
respectively, equal to the required contributions each year. 
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6. Postretirement benefits 

A. Postretirement health care benefits

The County provides postretirement health care benefits, in accordance with Board of County 
Commissioners policy, to all full-time employees that are eligible for retirement, either by early retirement, 
Rule of 75 (a combination of years of service and age), or who have reached the retirement age of 62.  Of 
those eligible, 279 retirees currently receive postretirement health care benefits.  The County’s 
contributions are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis and both the County and retirees contribute towards 
the amount paid for health care benefit premiums based on years of service.  Expenditures for 
postretirement health care benefits are recognized as retirees report claims and include a provision for 
estimated claims incurred but not yet reported to the County.  During the year ended December 31, 2007, 
expenditures of $507,791 were recognized for postretirement health care premiums.   

B. Other postemployment benefit (OPEB)

Plan Description

The County contributes to and administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
postemployment healthcare plan referred to as the Medical Benefits Trust Fund (MBTF) to provide 
medical benefits to eligible retired County employees and their beneficiaries.  Authority was established by 
approval of a resolution adopted by the Board of County Commissioners (BoCC) to create the MBTF 
fund on December 15, 2004.  The BoCC has the authority to amend the contributions and terms of the 
MBTF at will.  The financial activity is included in the Self Insurance Fund financial statements reflected 
in these financial statements. 

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements for the plan members and their employers are established annually by the 
Employee Benefits Committee.  The required contributions are based on pay-as-you-go financing 
requirements.  For fiscal year 2007, the County contributed $11,086,467 to the plan for current premiums, 
which accounted for 79% of total revenues recorded for medical benefits.  Plan members contributed 
$2,888,225 for medical benefits through their required contributions, which accounted for 21% of 
revenues.

The retiree Pre-Medicare monthly premium rates before subsidy rage from $275.28 for a retiree or spouse 
only to $2,295.77 for a retiree and family.  The County subsidy rates for this same category range from 
$150 to $280.88 for individuals with at least 8 years of service to 20+ years of service. 

Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation

The County’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the 
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with 
the parameters of GASB Statement 45 implemented proactively.  The ARC represents a level of funding 
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal annual costs and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  The following table shows 
the components of the states annual OPEB cost for the year, and the amount actually contributed to the 
plan, and changes in the County’s net OPEB obligation to MBTF:  
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Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 24,383,611$
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 975,344
Adjustment to ARC

Annual OPEB Cost 25,358,955$
Contributions M ade (16,178,906)

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 9,180,049
NET OPEB - Beginning of Year 26,203,333
NET OPEB - End of Year 35,383,382$

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the 
net OPEB obligation for 2007 and the preceding year were as follows: 

Percentage of Annual OPEB
Fiscal Year End Annual OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Net OPEB Obligation
12/31/2006 23,358,955 61% 26,203,333
12/31/2007 25,358,955 63% 35,383,382

7. Jointly governed organizations 

Pikes Peak Regional Building Department (PPRBD) – The County, in conjunction with the City of Colorado 
Springs, City of Fountain, City of Manitou Springs, Town of Green Mountain Falls, Town of Monument, and 
Town of Palmer Lake has created the Pikes Peak Regional Building Department.  The PPRBD’s board is 
composed of three members, one appointed by the County, one appointed by the City of Colorado Springs, 
and one appointed by the other cities and towns together.  During 2003, certificates of participation through 
the County of $17,245,000 were issued to finance a building project for PPRBD.  PPRBD has entered into a 
lease agreement with the County to make lease payments that will pay the debt service on the certificates of 
participation.  The County is not obligated for repayment of the certificates of participation beyond the 
resources provided by the lease agreement with PPRBD. 

The Board of County Commissioners and the City of Colorado Springs have entered into a joint venture 
through an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) to form a separate legal entity, the El Paso County 
Emergency Services Agency (ESA).  This joint venture, as governed by a five-member board appointed by the 
City and County, provides ambulance service, emergency medical, and rescue management services for their 
shared boundaries,  while sharing in the costs and avoiding duplication of services.  The ESA in which the 
County participates is not considered a component unit and is, therefore, not included in the County’s 
reporting entity.  The County does not invest in the ESA and it is intended that the ESA administer its fees in 
order to fully recover all expenses.  Since the County has only a residual equity interest, the equity method is 
not considered appropriate for this joint venture. 
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8. Pikes Peak Rural Transportation Authority (PPRTA) 

In November 2004, the voters of El Paso County approved a one percent sales tax to address a backlog of 
road, bridge, and transportation needs within the unincorporated areas of El Paso County and within the city 
limits of Colorado Springs, Manitou Springs, and the town limits of Green Mountain Falls. 

The Pikes Peak Rural Transportation Authority (PPRTA) was formed as a result of the approved one percent 
sales tax.  The PPRTA Board is comprised of three County Commissioners, the Mayor of the City of 
Colorado Springs, two City Council Members, the Mayor of Manitou Springs, and the Mayor of Green 
Mountain Falls.  Together they ensure the one percent sales tax is being spent in accordance with the 
approved ballot language specifications. 

The one percent sales tax is being allocated as follows: 
55% Capital road and bridge projects as listed on the ballot 
35% Maintenance of road and bridges 
10% Transit services 

9. Construction Commitments 

At year-end, there were projects under construction with commitments of $26,557,819 

Amount to Complete
December 31, 2006 Projects Project in 2007
M etro Jail Renovation (2007 COP) 3,066,225$                
DM V Renovation (2007 COP) 240,900
Courthouse Renovation (2007 COP) 16,743,148
Parking Structure (2007 COP) 6,218,605
Justice Advisory Council Project (JAC) 8,892
Brush Fire Truck 52,003
GIS/GPS 49,871
Well & Storage Tanks - Ellicot 69,394
Automated Vehicle Locate System 35,550
Fountan Creek Reg Park 8,330
Stratmoor Valley Trailhead 8,356
Willow Springs Improvements 55,360
Fountain Creek Trail Improvements 1,185

26,557,819$             
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Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

Major Governmental Funds Descriptions 

GENERAL FUND

As the County’s major operating fund, the general fund accounts for ordinary operating expenditures financed by 
property taxes, service charges, and other sources.  The fund includes all resources and expenditures not legally or 

properly accounted for in other funds. 

ROAD & BRIDGE FUND

Accounts for construction and maintenance of County roads and bridges financed by property taxes, highway user 
fees, and other revenues restricted to use on roads and bridges. 

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Accounts for the federal and state public welfare programs administered by the County and financed by grants, 
intergovernmental reimbursements, and property taxes. 
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El Paso County, Colorado 
General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Property taxes 11,128,530$     11,128,530$     11,123,814$       (4,716)$            
Sales taxes 72,639,420 72,639,420 69,146,880 (3,492,540)
Other taxes
Intergovernmental 8,932,764 13,073,846 11,599,980 (1,473,866)
Fees and fines 511,665 511,665 568,611 56,946
Licenses and permits 326,100 326,100 289,866 (36,234)
Charges for services 16,397,250 16,984,922 15,444,239 (1,540,683)
Investment earnings 2,535,000 2,535,000 2,385,381 (149,619)
M iscellaneous 1,099,684 2,614,609 2,473,954 (140,655)

Total revenues 113,570,413 119,814,092 113,032,725 (6,781,367)
(113,032,725)

EXPENDITURES
General government:

Administration 1,634,535 3,729,752 3,713,193 16,559
Internal Audit 174,188 27,146 27,146
Finance 2,915,185 3,760,565 3,527,745 232,820
Security 1,837,996 1,693,283 1,576,570 116,713
Facilities management 8,063,924 7,581,055 7,111,798 469,257
Procurement 421,564 416,379 404,135 12,244
Employment services 197,870 144,370 144,369 1
Employee benefits and medical services 851,385 819,145 819,143 2
Information technology 7,148,056 7,130,593 7,095,065 35,528
Public communication 249,255 145,037 144,379 658
Planning
County Attorney 991,329 969,675 782,916 186,759
County Clerk and Recorder 8,369,807 8,098,431 7,348,279 750,152
County Treasurer 1,186,885 1,164,313 1,164,313
County Assessor 3,473,596 3,450,512 3,450,512
County Surveyor 8,953 8,953 8,202 751
Public Trustee 693,778 781,862 780,486 1,376

Total general government 38,218,306 39,921,071 38,098,251 1,822,820

Public safety:
Community corrections 6,346,771 6,959,208 6,452,285 506,923
Coroner 1,391,271 1,487,717 1,476,935 10,782
County Sheriff 45,201,457 48,854,538 47,106,243 1,748,295

Total public safety 52,939,499$    57,301,463$    55,035,463$      2,266,000$      

(Continued)

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado  
General Fund - Continued 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Health and welfare:
Environmental services 1,081,270$      1,086,643$      1,011,707$        74,936$          
Senior services
Health administration 3,830,373 3,810,948 3,810,948

Total health and welfare 4,911,643 4,897,591 4,822,655 74,936

Culture and recreation:
Parks 2,148,296 2,036,786 2,004,251 32,535

Total culture and recreation: 2,148,296 2,036,786 2,004,251 32,535

Auxiliary services:
Veterans services 271,795 271,071 724
CSU extension service 313,370 310,280 310,163 117

Total auxiliary services 313,370 582,075 581,234 841

Capital outlay 1,064,560 1,708,677 1,111,981 596,696

Total expenditures 99,595,674 106,447,663 101,653,835 4,793,828
101,653,835

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 13,974,739 13,366,429 11,378,890 (1,987,539)

11,378,890
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 100,000 100,000 78,291 (21,709)
Transfers in 1,696,363 1,500,735 (195,628)
Transfers out (14,374,483) (14,195,870) (14,193,099) 2,771

Total other financing sources (uses) (14,274,483) (12,399,507) (12,614,073) (214,566)
(12,614,073)

Net changes in fund balances (299,744)$        966,922$         (1,235,183)$        (2,202,105)$     
1,235,183

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado  
Road & Bridge Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 8,910,007$       8,910,007$       8,891,593$       (18,414)$          
Intergovernmental:

Payment in lieu of taxes 69,000 69,000 69,000
U.S. Forest Service/M ineral Leasing 15,000 15,000 16,472 1,472
Highway users tax 9,085,471 9,085,471 9,291,183 205,712
Additional motor vehicle registration 575,000 575,000 613,056 38,056
Federal reimbursements 1,697,211 337,271 (1,359,940)
Local revenue 1,000 1,000 119,800 118,800
Sale of M aterials (BLM ) 1,000 1,000 13 (987)
Taylor Grazing Act 25 25 (25)

Total intergovernmental 9,746,496 11,443,707 10,446,795 (996,912)

Charges for services 417,500 615,450 459,681 (155,769)
Interest 425,000 441,546 584,476 142,930
M iscellaneous 6,000 6,000 22,732 16,732

Total revenues 19,505,003 21,416,710 20,405,277 (1,011,433)
(20,405,277)

EXPENDITURES
Public works:

Personal Services 10,061,249 10,101,002 9,740,727 360,275
Operating Expenses 8,735,873 15,401,537 8,533,091 6,868,446
Capital outlay 675,000 2,187,309 494,396 1,692,913

Total expenditures 19,472,122 27,689,848 18,768,214 8,921,634
18,768,214

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 32,881 (6,273,138) 1,637,063 7,910,201

(1,637,063)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets  
Transfers in
Transfers out (475,943) (480,863) (1,965,256) (1,484,393)

Total other financing sources (uses) (475,943) (480,863) (1,965,256) (1,484,393)
1,965,256

Net changes in fund balances (443,062)$        (6,754,001)$     (328,193)$         6,425,808$      
(328,193)

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado  
Human Services Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 6,478,251$       6,478,251$       6,446,458$       (31,793)$          
Intergovernmental - Welfare 32,344,492 32,344,492 30,293,394 (2,051,098)
Charges for services
M iscellaneous 8,750 8,750 141,371 132,621

Total revenues 38,831,493 38,831,493 36,881,223 (1,950,270)
(36,881,223)

EXPENDITURES
Health and welfare:

County administration block grant 8,514,168 9,587,625 9,212,995 374,630
Temporary aid to needy families 8,323,205 8,345,510 8,008,471 337,039
Child welfare block grant 14,794,026 15,790,278 14,704,302 1,085,976
Child care block grant 1,370,729 1,370,729 1,222,631 148,098
Child Support Enforcement 4,567,000 4,584,710 4,563,091 21,619
M iscellaneous state grants 3,321,700 1,570,519 1,322,008 248,511
Local/county funding 607,391 248,848 233,032 15,816

Total expenditures 41,498,219 41,498,219 39,266,530 2,231,689
39,266,530

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (2,666,726) (2,666,726) (2,385,307) 281,419

2,385,307
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 3,557,699 3,557,699 3,305,016 (252,683)
Transfers out (785,764) (785,764) (742,371) 43,393

(742,371)
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,771,935 2,771,935 2,562,645 (209,290)

(2,562,645)
Net changes in fund balances 105,209$         105,209$         177,338$          72,129$          

(177,338)

Budgeted Amounts



74      County of El Paso – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 

El Paso County, Colorado 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Budget-to-GAAP Reconciliation 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

NOTE A - Explanation of Differences Between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows 
                  and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

General Road Human
Fund and Bridge Services

Sources/inflows of resources
Total revenues and other financing sources - budgetary basis from

the schedules of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances - budget and actual 114,611,751$   20,405,277$    40,186,239$

Interest earned on investments held for construction is not an
inflow for budgetary purposes but is included as revenue for
financial reporting purposes

Gains on sales of capital assets are not inflows for budgetary
purposes but are non-operating revenues for financial
reporting purposes

Revenues are inflows for budgetary purposes but are not
reported an agency fund for financial reporting purposes

Total operating revenues, non-operating revenues, capital
contributions - GAAP basis from the combining statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets 114,611,751$  20,405,277$    40,186,239$

Uses/outflows of resources
Total expenditures and other financing uses - budgetary basis from

the schedules of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances - budget and actual 115,846,934$   20,733,470$    40,008,901$

Capital outlays are outflows of budgetary resources but are not
expenses for financial reporting purposes

Depreciation is not an outflow of budgetary resources but is an
expense for financial reporting purposes

Accrued wages are not outflows of budgetary resources but are
expendituresfor financial reporting purposes 11,799 (28,467) 6,440

Other postemployment benefits
Compensated absences are not outflows of budgetary resources

but are expenses for financial reporting purposes
Inventory adjustments are not outflows of budgetary resources

but are expenses for financial reporting purposes (96,358) (37,724)
Health claims incurred but not reported are not outflows of

budgetaryresources but are expenses for financial reporting
purposes

Expenditures are outflows for budgetary purposes but are not 
reported in an agency fund for financial reporting purposes

Total operating expenses - GAAP basis from the combining
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets 115,762,375$  20,667,279$    40,015,341$
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Solid Land Self- Fleet
Capital Waste Development Insurance Services Struther's Rancho
Projects M anagement Review Fund Fund Road Road

7,249,650$      909,428$         2,540,216$      20,002,682$    6,233,571$      78,662$          84,247$          

1,708,097

(9,703)

39,429,749 (78,662) (84,247)

48,387,496$    909,428$         2,540,216$      20,002,682$   6,223,868$     $                   $                   

8,138,342$      775,117$         3,659,075$      22,281,191$    6,178,904$      691$               251,156$         

5,007,366 (129,507) (6,500) (1,236,627)

28,781 129,488 12,940 1,729,937

35,383,382

2,586 (4,023) (4,487)

(88,046)

(1,067,651)

2,672,167 (691) (251,156)

15,817,875$    806,484$         3,655,033$      56,603,362$   6,588,655$     $                   $                   
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Modified Approach for the County 
Department of Transportation 

Infrastructure capital assets 

The County has elected to use the “Modified Approach” as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 to account 
for and report infrastructure capital assets through an asset management system. The infrastructure is 
separated into ten major category groups, (Pavement, Structures, ITS, Signs and safety, Aggregate, Storm drain 
system, Reservoirs, Channels, Pedestrian facilities and Right-of-ways).  Through the use of this system the 
County reports (1) infrastructure inventory, (2) condition levels of the infrastructure assets on a 
Good/Fair/Poor system and (3) estimates the annual amount to maintain and preserve at the established 
condition assessment level. 

The condition assessments will be performed at least every three years. The County’s next full 3 year 
assessment cycle will be complete as of December 31, 2009.  The County will preserve the infrastructure 
capital assets at or above the current reported condition levels.   

Targeted condition levels
Good   not less than 69%
Fair      not less than 23%
Poor      not less than 4%
Unknown not more than 4%

For our most recent assessment done in 2006, our condition distribution was:
Good 70%
Fair 24%
Poor 5%
Unknown 1%
Our next assessment will be completed in 2009.

The County has estimated that the amount of annual expenditures required to maintain the condition levels.  
A schedule of estimated annual amount calculated to maintain and preserve the infrastructure at the current 
level compared to actual expenditures for the infrastructure maintenance for the last four years is presented 
below, which are the only years this information is available. 

M aintenance Actual 
Year Estimate Expenditure
2007 $20,287,130 $18,768,214
2006 $20,186,755 $18,416,799
2005 $16,740,070 $16,421,213
2004 $20,969,398 $21,608,324



County of El Paso – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2007      77

Combining Statements and Schedules
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Non-Major Governmental Funds 

Special Revenue Funds Descriptions 

Special revenue accounts for programs and expenditures financed by revenues that are restricted, legally or by 
Board policy, to designated uses. 

EL PASO COUNTY SHERIFF SPECIAL INVESTIGATION FUND

This find was established to finance special investigations to combat certain types of criminal activity. 

RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION FUND

The Retirement Contribution Fund accounts for property tax revenues that are expended to provide the County 
contribution for the employee retirement plan. 

CONSERVATION TRUST

Accounts for lottery revenue received from the State of Colorado, which is restricted to use for the development 
and maintenance of parks, trails, open space, and other recreational purposes.  The fund also includes other 

revenues dedicated to such uses. 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

The Economic Development Fund was established to account for contributions made by local business and 
individuals to the State Zone Fund. 

PIKES PEAK WORKFORCE CENTER

The Pikes Peak Workforce Center fund was established to account for the revenues and expenditures for the One 
Stop Job Center and Jobs Training Partnership Act programs. 

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

This fund is used to account for the activities of the District Attorney. 
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Special Revenue Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
December 31, 2007 

El Paso County
Sheriff Special
Investigation Retirement Conservation 

Fund Contribution Trust
ASSETS
Cash and investments 928,901$             566,945$             2,130,982$           
Taxes receivable 3,931,777
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds 33,659
Due from other governments

Total assets 928,901$             4,532,381$           2,130,982$           

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 30,179$               (11,605)$              36,181$               
Due to other funds 21,527 17,422
Deferred revenue 3,931,777

Total liabilities 30,179 3,941,699 53,603

Fund balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances 392,229 71,366
Unreserved, reported in:

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures 219,600 569,639 808,009
Undesignated 286,893 21,043 1,198,004

Total fund balances 898,722 590,682 2,077,379
898,722 590,682 2,077,379

Total liabilities and fund balances 928,901$             4,532,381$           2,130,982$           
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District 
Attorney Total

Pikes Peak Offices of the Nonmajor
Economic Workforce Fourth Judicial Governmental

Development Center Court Funds

999,530$             $                        4,626,358$           
3,931,777

1,751,268 6,800 1,758,068
33,659

828,159 828,159

2,750,798$           834,959$             $                        11,178,021$         

2,533,647$           124,180$             2,712,582$           
7,984 710,779 757,712

3,931,777

2,541,631 834,959 7,402,071

463,595

25,000 1,622,248
184,167 1,690,107

209,167 3,775,950
209,167 3,775,950

2,750,798$           834,959$             $                        11,178,021$         
11,178,021$         
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Special Revenue Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

El Paso County
Sheriff Special
Investigation Retirement Conservation

Fund Contribution Trust
REVENUES

Property taxes $ 3,678,004$           $
Intergovernmental 978,870 250,651 1,153,542
Fees and fines 78,825
Investment earnings 9,245 98,798
M iscellaneous 290

Total revenues 1,067,230 3,928,655 1,252,340
-3928655 -1252340

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 5,446,677
Public safety 685,132
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation 832,984
Outside agencies

Capital outlay 204,825 335,671

Total expenditures 889,957 5,446,677 1,168,655
5,446,677 1,168,655

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 177,273 (1,518,022) 83,685

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,535,441
Transfers out (37,820)

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,535,441 (37,820)
1,535,441 (37,820)

Net change in fund balances 177,273 17,419 45,865

Fund balances - January 1 721,449 573,263 2,031,514
Fund balances - December 31 898,722$            590,682$             2,077,379$          

-898722 -590682 -2077379
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District
Attorney Total

Pikes Peak Offices of the Nonmajor
Economic Workforce Fourth Judicial Governmental

Development Center District Funds

$ $ $ 3,678,004$           
12,500 7,542,687 525,688 10,463,938

188,918 267,743
108,043

5,233,226 46,985 5,280,501

5,434,644 7,589,672 525,688 19,798,229
-5434644 -7589672 -525688

5,446,677
10,854,159 11,539,291

7,589,672 7,589,672
832,984

5,473,129 5,473,129
540,496

5,473,129 7,589,672 10,854,159 31,422,249
5,473,129 7,589,672 10,854,159

(38,485) (10,328,471) (11,624,020)
10,328,471

10,297,796 11,833,237
(80,194) (118,014)

10,217,602 11,715,223
10,217,602

(38,485) (110,869) 91,203

247,652 110,869 3,684,747
209,167$             $                        $                        3,775,950$          
-209167 0 0 -3775950
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Special Revenue Funds
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Retirement Contribution Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 3,696,118$       3,696,118$       3,678,004$       (18,114)$          
Intergovernmental 300,000 495,186 250,651 (244,535)

Total revenues 3,996,118 4,191,304 3,928,655 (262,649)
-3928655

EXPENDITURES
Employer contributions 5,279,136        5,391,322        5,391,322        
Treasurer fees 55,442            55,442            55,355            87

Total expenditures 5,334,578 5,446,764 5,446,677 87
5446677

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (1,338,460) (1,255,460) (1,518,022) (262,562)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,338,460 1,255,460 1,535,441 279,981

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,338,460 1,255,460 1,535,441 279,981
-1535441

Net change in fund balances $                    $                    17,419$           17,419$          

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Conservation Trust Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 1,120,000$       1,120,000$       1,153,542$       33,542$           
Investment earnings 70,000 70,000 98,798 28,798

Total revenues 1,190,000 1,190,000 1,252,340 62,340
-1252340

EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation 785,900 832,984 832,984
Capital outlay 390,000 530,748 335,671 195,077

Total expenditures 1,175,900 1,363,732 1,168,655 195,077
1168655

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 14,100 (173,732) 83,685 257,417

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (37,820) (37,820) (37,820)       

Total other financing sources (uses) (37,820) (37,820) (37,820)       
37820

Net change in fund balances (23,720)$         (211,552)$        45,865$           257,417$         

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Economic Development Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 12,000$           12,000$           12,500$           500$                
Charges for services 140,000 140,000 188,918 48,918
M iscellaneous 3,860,000 5,282,644 5,233,226 (49,418)

Total revenues 4,012,000 5,434,644 5,434,644
-5434644

EXPENDITURES
General government 4,087,000 5,509,644 5,473,129 36,515

Total expenditures 4,087,000 5,509,644 5,473,129 36,515
5473129

Net change in fund balances (75,000)$         (75,000)$         (38,485)$          36,515$          

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Pikes Peak Workforce Center Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 8,106,249$       8,106,249$       7,542,687$       (563,562)$         
M iscellaneous 5,000 5,000 46,985 41,985

Total revenues 8,111,249 8,111,249 7,589,672 (521,577)
-7589672

EXPENDITURES
Health and welfare 8,111,249 8,095,640 7,589,672 505,968
Capital outlay       15,609 15,609

Total expenditures 8,111,249 8,111,249 7,589,672 521,577
7,589,672

Net change in fund balances $                    $                    $                    $                    

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado 
District Attorney of the Fourth Judicial District 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 737,471$          525,688$          525,688$          $                     

Total revenues 737,471 525,688 525,688
-525688

EXPENDITURES
General government 11,184,627 10,922,235 10,854,159 68,076

Total expenditures 11,184,627 10,922,235 10,854,159 68,076
10854159

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (10,447,156) (10,396,547) (10,328,471) 68,076

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 10,280,400 10,260,400 10,297,796 37,396
Transfers out (33,244) (63,852) (80,194) (16,342)

Total other financing sources (uses) 10,247,156 10,196,548 10,217,602 21,054
-10217602

Net change in fund balances (200,000)$        (199,999)$        (110,869)$         89,130$          
110869

Budgeted Amounts
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Major Funds 

Capital Projects Fund Description 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Accounts for the construction, improvement and/or purchase of public facilities, including, land, buildings, and 
furnishings.  Financing is provided by property taxes and capital lease proceeds 
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Capital Projects Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 7,281,755$       7,281,755$       7,249,650$       (32,105)$          

Total revenues 7,281,755 7,281,755 7,249,650 (32,105)

EXPENDITURES
General government
Purchased services 114,226 115,323 115,323
Debt service 8,021,412 7,314,349 7,291,613 22,736
Capital outlay 999,941 731,406 268,535

Total expenditures 8,135,638 8,429,613 8,138,342 291,271

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (853,883) (1,147,858) (888,692) 259,166

Net change in fund balances (853,883)$        (1,147,858)$     (888,692)$         259,166$         

Budgeted Amounts
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Proprietary Funds 

Enterprise Funds Descriptions 

These funds account for the programs and expenditures for which a fee is charged to external users for goods and 
services.

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

The Solid Waste Management Fund has been established by the Board of County Commissioners to collect tipping 
fees at privately owned landfills within the County.  The funds will be appropriated to pay for operational service 

information and equipment needed for solid waste disposal sites within the County. 

LAND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW

The Land Development Review Fund was established to collect and account for land development fees and 
charges and is governed by the Planning Commission that was formed in accordance with State law and County 
regulations to review planning petitions and make recommendations to the Board of County Commissioners on 
land use requests.  Functions of the Commission include the preparation of a Master Plan and Zoning Plan as a 
framework for the guidance of individual zoning and subdivision decisions for any part of the unincorporated 

areas of the County. 

Internal Service Funds Descriptions 

Internal service funds are usually to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or 
agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to other government units, on a cost 

reimbursement basis. 

SELF-INSURANCE FUND

El Paso County is essentially self-insured.  The Self-Insurance Fund was established to account for the 
accumulation and allocation of costs associated with insurance claims and administration costs. 

FLEET SERVICES FUND

Fleet Services’ objective is to maximize vehicle and equipment availability for service and to minimize costs to the 
County.  This includes regular preventative maintenance, vehicle replacement, sale of unneeded or past useful life 

of equipment, and maintaining an adequate fleet inventory.
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Enterprise Funds 

Combining Statement of Net Assets 
December 31, 2007 

Solid Land
Waste Development

M anagement Review Totals
ASSETS
Current assets: 2390583

Cash and investments 1,340,957$             1,049,626$             2,390,583$             
Accounts receivable 211,811 24,593 236,404
Due from other funds 1,561 1,561
Intergovernmental 50 50

Total current assets 1,552,768 1,075,830 2,628,598

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 914,986 443,771 1,358,757

Total assets 2,467,754$            1,519,601$             3,987,355$            

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 21,757$                 52,951$                 74,708$                 
Compensated absences 18,978 18,978
Due to other funds 41,362 1,801 43,163

Total current liabilities 63,119 73,730 136,849

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 34,364 234,088 268,452

Total liabilities 97,483 307,818 405,301

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 914,986 443,771 1,358,757
Unrestricted 1,455,285 768,012 2,223,297

Total net assets 2,370,271$            1,211,783$             3,582,054$            

Total liabilities and net assets 2,467,754$            1,519,601$             3,987,355$            
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El Paso County, Colorado  
Enterprise Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Fund Net Assets 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Solid Land
Waste Development
M anagement Review Totals

Operating revenues:
Charges for services 846,968$                  1,957,808$                2,804,776$                

Operating expenses:
Personal services 218,265 2,115,953 2,334,218
Operating expenses 34,336 1,300,316 1,334,652
Depreciation 28,781 129,488 158,269
Administration 513,367 513,367

Total operating expenses 794,749 3,545,757 4,340,506
Operating income (loss) 52,219 (1,587,949) (1,535,730)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment earnings (62,460) (77,501) (139,961)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (62,460) (77,501) (139,961)

Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers (114,679) 1,510,448 1,395,769

Transfers in (504,907) (504,907)
Transfers out 11,735 109,276 121,011

Change in net assets (102,944) 1,114,817 1,011,873

Net assets - January 1 (2,267,327) (2,326,600) (4,593,927)
Net assets - December 31 (2,370,271) (1,211,783) (3,582,054)
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El Paso County, Colorado  
Enterprise Funds 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Solid Land
Waste Development

M anagement Review Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers 818,459$           1,990,354$         2,808,813$         
Receipts from interfund services provided                         70,597               70,597
Payments to suppliers (356,728) (1,127,965) (1,484,693)
Payments to employees (213,437) (2,027,562) (2,240,999)
Payments for interfund services used (167,537) (420,926) (588,463)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 80,757 (1,515,502) (1,434,745)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers in (out) (11,735) 395,631 383,896
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities (11,735) 395,631 383,896

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Capital expenditures (129,507) (129,507)
Net cash used in capital financing activities (129,507) (129,507)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 62,460 77,501 139,961

Net cash provided by investing activities 62,460 77,501 139,961
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 131,482 (1,171,877) (1,040,395)

Cash and cash equivalents - January 1 1,209,475 2,221,503 3,430,978
Cash and cash equivalents - December 31 1,340,957$        1,049,626$         2,390,583$        

2,390,583$         
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

provided (used)by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) 52,219$             (1,587,949)$        (1,535,730)$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
M iscellaneous revenue
Depreciation expense 28,781 129,488 158,269
(Increase) decrease in assets

Accounts receivable (28,510) 28,813 303
Intergovernmental receivables 3,731 3,731
Due from other funds 70,597 70,597

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (15,005) (153,385) (168,390)
Compensated absences 2,587 (4,024) (1,437)
Due to other funds 40,685 (2,773) 37,912
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activites 80,757$            (1,515,502)$        (1,434,745)$       
(1,434,745)$        
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Enterprise Funds
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Solid Waste Management Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 675,000$          675,000$          846,761$          171,761$          
Interest 50,000 50,000 62,460 12,460
M iscellaneous             207 207

Total revenues 725,000 725,000 909,428 184,428

EXPENDITURES
Personal services 230,220 215,678 215,678
Operating expenses 447,040 547,704 547,704

Total expenditures 677,260 763,382 763,382

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 47,740 (38,382) 146,046 184,428

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (11,735) (11,735) (11,735)       

Total other financing sources (uses) (11,735) (11,735) (11,735)       

Net change in fund balances 36,005$          (50,117)$         134,311$          184,428$         

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Land Development Review Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 2,261,950$       2,261,950$       1,957,808$       (304,142)$         
Interest 100,000 100,000 77,501 (22,499)

Total revenues 2,361,950 2,361,950 2,035,309 (326,641)

EXPENDITURES
Personal services 2,508,538 2,298,867 2,119,976 178,891
Other operating 1,474,463 1,871,208 1,300,316 570,892
Capital outlay 199,847 129,507 70,340

Total expenditures 3,983,001 4,369,922 3,549,799 820,123

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,621,051) (2,007,972) (1,514,490) 493,482

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer in 504,907 504,907 504,907       
Transfers out       (109,276) (109,276)       

Total other financing sources (uses) 504,907 395,631 395,631

Net change in fund balances (1,116,144)$     (1,612,341)$     (1,118,859)$      493,482$         

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado  
Internal Service Funds 

Combining Statement of Net Assets 
December 31, 2007 

Self- Fleet
Insurance Services

Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Current assets: 1809534

Cash and investments 800,042$               1,009,492$             1,809,534$             
Receivables

Accounts receivable 7,294 1,644 8,938
Intergovernmental receivable 375,090 7,520 382,610

Due from other funds 845,036 48,743 893,779
Prepaid expenses 281,000  281,000
Inventories 704,601 704,601

Total current assets 2,308,462 1,772,000 4,080,462

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 48,865 9,404,627 9,453,492

Total assets 2,357,327$            11,176,627$          13,533,954$          

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,183,229$             224,574$               1,407,803$             
Accrued liabilities 3,263,518 3,263,518
Capital lease obligation 623,307 623,307
Compensated absences  16,820 16,820
Due to other funds 452,297 958 453,255

Total current liabilities 4,899,044 865,659 5,764,703

Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital lease obligation 1,246,624 1,246,624
Compensated absences 308,269 308,269
Other postemployment benefits  35,383,382 35,383,382

Total noncurrent liabilities 35,383,382 1,554,893 36,938,275

         Total liabilities 40,282,426 2,420,552 42,702,978

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 48,865 9,404,627 9,453,492
Unrestricted (37,973,964) (648,552) (38,622,516)

Total net assets (37,925,099) 8,756,075 (29,169,024)
$37,925,099

Total liabilities and net assets 2,357,327$            11,176,627$          13,533,954$          
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El Paso County, Colorado  
Internal Service Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Fund Net Assets 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Self- Fleet
Insurance Services

Fund Fund Totals
Operating revenues:

Charges for services 17,583,804$              638,072$                  18,221,876$              

Operating expenses:
Insurance premiums 821,795 821,795
Claim settlements 50,623,146 50,623,146
Depreciation 12,940 1,729,937 1,742,877
Administration and operations 5,145,481 4,858,719 10,004,200

Total operating expenses 56,603,362 6,588,656 63,192,018
Operating income (loss) (39,019,558) (5,950,584) (44,970,142)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Taxes 2,248,259 5,314,394 7,562,653
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 255,371 255,371
M iscellaneous 170,619 16,032 186,651

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,418,878 5,585,797 8,004,675

Income (loss) before transfers (36,600,680) (364,787) (36,965,467)

Change in net assets (36,600,680) (364,787) (36,965,467)

Net assets - January 1 (1,324,419) 9,120,862 7,796,443
Net assets - December 31 (37,925,099)$            8,756,075$               (29,169,024)$            

37,925,099
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El Paso County, Colorado  
Internal Service Funds 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Self- Fleet
Insurance Services

Fund Fund Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers 347,656$           9,748$               357,404$           
Receipts from interfund services provided 17,301,246 610,065 17,911,311
Payments to suppliers (7,533,181) 1,631,561 (5,901,620)
Payments to employees (15,092,920) (1,692,959) (16,785,879)
Payments for interfund services used 224,081 (3,058,910) (2,834,829)

Net cash used in operating activities (4,753,118) (2,500,495) (7,253,613)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES:

Taxes received 2,248,259 5,314,394 7,562,653
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 2,248,259 5,314,394 7,562,653

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 265,073 265,073
Capital expenditures (6,500) (3,106,560) (3,113,060)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (6,500) (2,841,487) (2,847,987)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,511,359) (27,588) (2,538,947)

Cash and cash equivalents - January 1 3,311,401 1,037,080 4,348,481
Cash and cash equivalents - December 31 800,042$          1,009,492$         1,809,534$        

1,809,534$         
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in

operating activities:
Operating loss (39,019,558)$      (5,950,584)$        (44,970,142)$      
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used

in operating activities
M iscellaneous revenue 170,619 16,033 186,652
Depreciation expense 12,940 1,729,937 1,742,877
(Increase) decrease in assets

Accounts receivable 2,274,317 (1,346) 2,272,971
Intergovernmental receivables 162,573 (4,937) 157,636
Due from other funds (282,558) (28,007) (310,565)
Inventories (88,045) (88,045)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (89,408) (42,660) (132,068)
Accrued liabilities 34,315,731 34,315,731
Capital lease obligation 1,869,931 1,869,931
Compensated absences 10,383 10,383
Due to other funds 224,081 (11,200) 212,881
Deferred revenue (2,521,855) (2,521,855)

Net cash used in operating activities (4,753,118)$       (2,500,495)$        (7,253,613)$       
(7,253,613)$        
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Internal Service Funds
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Self-Insurance Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 16,804,112$     16,804,112$     17,267,660$     463,548$          
Taxes 2,259,855 2,259,855 2,248,259 (11,596)
Intergovernmental 316,144 316,144
M iscellaneous 10,719 10,719
Insurance recoveries 33,500 159,900 126,400

Total revenues 19,063,967 19,097,467 20,002,682 905,215

EXPENDITURES
Claim settlements 13,418,438 16,339,786 16,307,415 32,371
Administration and operations 4,624,375 5,156,857 5,145,481 11,376
Insurance premiums 990,430 836,979 821,795 15,184
Capital outlay       6,500 6,500

Total expenditures 19,033,243 22,340,122 22,281,191 58,931

Net change in fund balances 30,724$          (3,242,655)$     (2,278,509)$      964,146$         

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Fleet Services Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 5,173,962$       5,173,962$       5,314,394$       140,432$          
Charges for services 765,781 799,575 638,072 (161,503)
M iscellaneous 6,000 6,000 16,031 10,031

Total revenues 5,945,743 5,979,537 5,968,497 (11,040)

EXPENDITURES
Administration and operations 4,867,450 6,253,114 5,412,345 840,769
Capital outlay 1,539,000 766,559 766,559

Total expenditures 6,406,450 7,019,673 6,178,904 840,769

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (460,707) (1,040,136) (210,407) 829,729

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 165,000 165,000 265,074 100,074

Total other financing sources (uses) 165,000 165,000 265,074 100,074

Net change in fund balances (295,707)$        (875,136)$        54,667$           929,803$         

Budgeted Amounts
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Fiduciary Funds 

Private-Purpose Trust Funds Descriptions 

Private Purpose Trust funds are fund types used to report assets held on behalf of a trust arrangement.  The 
County is responsible for ensuring the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. 

PARK FEES

The Park Fees Fund was established by the Board of County Commissioners for park fees in lieu of land.  Fees are 
collected from developers of new subdivisions to provide for the purchase and development of additional parks. 

SCHOOL’S TRUST

The School’s Trust Fund is used to account for resources from developers of new subdivisions and the 
distribution of these resources to local school districts. 

URBAN PARK

The Urban Park Fee Fund was established for the acquisition of urban parklands by El Paso County for future 
transfer to some other governmental entity for jurisdiction within the neighborhood or community planning unit 

from which the urban park fee was collected. 

Agency Funds Descriptions 

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. 

TREASURER’S AGENCY FUND

Accounts for the receipt and disbursement of all revenues received by the Treasurer for the County and all other 
taxing entities in the County, as well as the receipt, investment, and disbursement of all other revenues received by 

the County. 

PUBLIC TRUSTEE AGENCY FUND

This fund was established to account for expenditures for the Public Trustee’s Office.  The Public Trustee is 
appointed by the Governor of Colorado for a four-year term.  This office administers foreclosures including 

issuance of Public Trustee deeds, cure of default and lien redemptions. 

STRUTHER’S ROAD AGENCY FUND

Struther’s Road bonds were issued for construction and installation of improvements on a portion of Struther’s 
Road.

RANCHO COLORADO AGENCY FUND

Rancho Colorado bonds were issued to finance infrastructure improvements such as roads, drainage facilities, and 
water/sanitation facilities.
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Private-Purpose Trust Funds 

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 
December 31, 2007 

Park School's
Fees Trust Urban Park Totals

ASSETS
Cash and investments 2,962,861$           177,864$             1,099,913$           4,240,638$           

Total assets 2,962,861 177,864 1,099,913 4,240,638

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 74,227 74,227

NET ASSETS
Held in trust 2,888,634$          177,864$            1,099,913$           4,166,411$          

-2888634 -177864 -1099913 -4166411
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Private-Purpose Trust Funds 

Combining Statement of Changes in 
Fiduciary Net Assets 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Park School's Urban
Fees Trust Park Totals

ADDITIONS
Charges for services

Park fees 281,957$                   $                  80,320$               362,277$             
School fees 161,584 161,584

Total charges for services 281,957 161,584 80,320 523,861

Investment earnings 153,028 50,327 203,355

Total additions 434,985 161,584 130,647 727,216

DEDUCTIONS
Outside agencies 671,829 $             121,677 $             $                        793,506 $             

Change in net assets (236,844) 39,907 130,647 (66,290)

Net assets - January 1 3,125,478 137,957 969,266 4,232,701

Net assets - December 31 2,888,634$          177,864$            1,099,913$           4,166,411$          
-2888634 -177864 -1099913 -4166411
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Private-Purpose Trust Funds
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Park Fees Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 345,000$          345,000$          281,957$          63,043$          
Interest 120,000 120,000 153,028 33,028

Total revenues 465,000 465,000 434,985 (30,015)

EXPENDITURES
Outside agencies 665,000 1,181,878 671,829 510,049

Total expenditures 665,000 1,181,878 671,829 510,049

Net change in fund balances (200,000)$        (716,878)$        (236,844)$         480,034$         

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado 
School’s Trust Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 400,000$          400,000$          161,584$          (238,416)$         

Total Revenues 400,000 400,000 161,584 (238,416)

EXPENDITURES
Outside agencies 400,000 400,000 121,677 278,323

Total expenditures 400,000 400,000 121,677 278,323

Net change in fund balances $                    $                    39,907$           39,907$          

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Urban Park Fees Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 110,000$          110,000$          80,320$           29,680$          
Interest 40,000 40,000 50,327 10,327

Total revenues 150,000 150,000 130,647 (19,353)

Net change in fund balances 150,000$         150,000$         130,647$          (19,353)$         

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Agency Funds 

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 
December 31, 2007 

Public Struther's Rancho
Treasurer's Trustee Road Colorado Total

ASSETS
Cash and investments 26,197,861$      1,308,709$      216,343$         126,164$          27,849,077$     

LIABILITIES
Due to other governments 20,479,108$      $       $                     $               20,479,108$      
Escrow deposits held     

by trustee 516,371 516,371
Funds due to bondholders 216,343 126,164 342,507
Other 5,718,753 792,338 6,511,091

Total liabilities 26,197,861$      1,308,709$      216,343$         126,164$          27,849,077$     
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Agency Funds 

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net 
Assets and Liabilities 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Balance Balance
January 1, 2007 Additions Deletions December 31, 2007

ASSETS
Cash and investments 27,729,380$        791,488,804$      793,020,323$      26,197,861$        

LIABILITIES
Due to other governments 20,338,726$         589,127,213$       588,986,831$       20,479,108$         
Other 7,390,654 202,361,591 204,033,492 5,718,753

Total liabilities 27,729,380$        791,488,804$      793,020,323$      26,197,861$        

Balance Balance
January 1, 2007 Additions Deletions December 31, 2007

ASSETS
Cash and investments 1,181,515$          67,021,482$        66,894,288$         1,308,709$          

LIABILITIES
Escrow deposits held by trustee 536,133$             65,451,389$         65,471,151$         516,371$             
Other 645,382 1,570,093 1,423,137 792,338

Total liabilities 1,181,515$          67,021,482$        66,894,288$         1,308,709$          

TREASURER'S AGENCY FUND

(Continued)

PUBLIC TRUSTEE AGENCY FUND



114      County of El Paso – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 

El Paso County, Colorado 
Agency Funds 

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net 
Assets and Liabilities - Continued 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Balance Balance
January 1, 2007 Additions Deletions December 31, 2007

ASSETS
Cash and investments 138,372$            78,662$              691$                   216,343$            

LIABILITIES
Funds due to bondholders 138,372$            78,662$              691$                   216,343$            

Balance Balance
January 1, 2007 Additions Deletions December 31, 2007

ASSETS
Cash and investments 293,073$            84,247$              251,156$             126,164$            

LIABILITIES
Funds due to bondholders 293,073$            84,247$              251,156$             126,164$            

Balance Balance
January 1, 2007 Additions Deletions December 31, 2007

ASSETS
Cash and investments 29,342,340$        858,673,195$      860,166,458$      27,849,077$        

LIABILITIES
Due to other governments 20,338,726$         589,127,213$       588,986,831$       20,479,108$         
Escrow deposits held by trustee 536,133 65,451,389 65,471,151 516,371
Funds due to bondholders 431,445 162,909 251,847 342,507
Other 8,036,036 203,931,684 205,456,629 6,511,091

Total liabilities 29,342,340$        858,673,195$      860,166,458$      27,849,077$        

STRUTHER'S ROAD AGENCY FUND

RANCHO COLORADO AGENCY FUND

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
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Agency Funds
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Struther’s Road Agency Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Special assessments 69,195$           69,195$           69,100$           (95)$                
Interest 6,500 6,500 9,562 3,062

Total revenues 75,695 75,695 78,662 2,967

EXPENDITURES
Debt service 116,357 116,357 691 115,666

Total expenditures 116,357 116,357 691 115,666

Net change in fund balances (40,662)$         (40,662)$         77,971$           118,633$         

Budgeted Amounts
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Rancho Road Agency Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual  

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Special assessments 65,500$           65,500$           77,153$           11,653$           
Interest 7,500 7,500 7,094 (406)

Total revenues 73,000 73,000 84,247 11,247

EXPENDITURES
Debt service 250,983 251,156 251,156

Total expenditures 250,983 251,156 251,156

Net change in fund balances (177,983)$        (178,156)$        (166,909)$         11,247$          

Budgeted Amounts
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Capital Assets Used in the Operation of 
Governmental Funds
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds  

Schedule by Source 
December 31, 2007 

Governmental funds capital assets:
Land 14,069,596$             
Building 166,699,126
Improvements other than buildings 12,318,538
Infrastructure 402,295,547
M achinery and equipment 16,585,677
Furniture and fixtures 2,162,745
Computer equipment 15,716,814
Construction in progress 7,970,074

Total governmental funds capital assets 637,818,117$          

Investment in governmental funds capital assets by source:  
General fund 42,499,795$             
Special Revenue fund 360,232,367
Capital Projects fund 156,809,241
Donations 78,276,714

Total governmental funds capital assets 637,818,117$          

* This schedule presents only the capital balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in
internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets for the internal service funds are
included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds  

Schedule by Function and Activity  
December 31, 2007 

Improvements
other than 

Function and activity Land Buildings buildings Infrastructure
General government:

Office of the Board $                       $                       6,387$                $                       
Security 199,772  
Facilities management 13,012,621 14,578,436 2,968,441  
Environmental services                           
HR - personnel                           
Finance 88,433  
Information services 6,415,114 19,698  
County attorney
Clerk and recorder 3,055,520             
Treasurer
Assessor
Public trustee 4,248  
Parking 9,037,258   

Total general government 13,012,621 33,086,328 3,286,979

Public Safety:
Coroner 851,620              179,669              
Sheriff

Sheriff operation 1,820,264 192,216  
Jail 5,817,506   

District attorney
Judicial building 49,914,029 88,033  
Criminal justice center 53,758,496 1,075,126   
Sheriff Special Investigation

Total public safety 112,161,915 1,535,044

Public Works:
Department of transportation 554,810 8,486,461 3,766,356 402,295,547

Total public works 554,810 8,486,461 3,766,356 402,295,547

Health and welfare:
Department of human services 4,982,081           46,998               
Health department 4,065,600
One Stop Job Center 113,493              

Total health and welfare 9,047,681 160,491

Culture and recreation:
Parks 502,165 3,916,741 3,569,668

Total culture and recreation 502,165 3,916,741 3,569,668

Total governmental funds
capital assets 14,069,596$       166,699,126$     12,318,538$        402,295,547$     

* This schedule presents only the capital balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in
internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets for the internal service funds are
included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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M aintenance,
transportation and
communication Furniture and Computer Construction 

equipment fixtures equipment in progress Total

$                       $                       $                       $                       6,387$                
21,100                148,843  369,715

397,626 91,305 60,258 31,108,687
  18,013  18,013
 6,676 83,405  90,081
 20,002 697,166  805,601

7,480,504 281,537 9,507,055 324,282 24,028,190
  8,428  8,428

172,055 729,373 2,369,861 443,580              6,770,389
  125,869  125,869
 71,550 96,447  167,997
  222,170  226,418
   229,476              9,266,734

8,071,285 1,200,443 13,337,515 997,338 72,992,509

58,443               216,772              372,002                                   1,678,506           

5,600,672 426,738 1,052,463 95,991               9,188,344
   297,982              6,115,488

81,995  99,457  181,452
   743,816 50,745,878

12,966   54,846,588
690,471    690,471

6,444,547 643,510 1,523,922 1,137,789 123,446,727

1,864,820 244,484 230,302 5,698,692 423,141,472
1,864,820 244,484 230,302 5,698,692 423,141,472

134,939              58,264               263,804              5,486,086           
4,065,600           

23,022               9,244                 324,052              469,811              
157,961 67,508 587,856 10,021,497

47,064 6,800 37,219 136,255 8,215,912
47,064 6,800 37,219 136,255 8,215,912

16,585,677$        2,162,745$          15,716,814$       7,970,074$         637,818,117$      
637,818,117$      
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity  
December 31, 2007 

Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds

Capital Assets Capital Assets
Function and activity January 1, 2007 Additions Deletions December 31, 2007

General government:
Office of the Board 6,387$                $                       $                       6,387$                  
Security 229,715 140,000              369,715
Facilities management 36,675,885 5,567,198           31,108,687
Environmental services 18,013 18,013
Employment services 90,081 90,081
Finance 785,320 20,281               805,601
Information services 23,858,003 565,906 395,719 24,028,190
County attorney 8,428 8,428
Clerk and recorder 3,201,015 3,569,374 6,770,389
Treasurer 138,869 13,000 125,869
Assessor 167,997 167,997
Public trustee 226,418 226,418
Parking 3,445,890 5,820,844           9,266,734

Total general government 68,852,021 10,116,405 5,975,917 72,992,509

Public safety:
Coroner 1,534,892 143,614              1,678,506
Sheriff

     Sheriff operation 9,256,548 717,879 786,083 9,188,344
     Jail 5,817,506 297,982              6,115,488

District attorney 181,452 181,452
Judicial building 51,877,634 859,305 1,991,061           50,745,878
Criminal justice center 54,749,256 97,332 54,846,588
Sheriff special investigation 690,471 690,471

Total public safety 124,107,759 2,116,112 2,777,144 123,446,727

Public works:
Department of transportation 405,058,313 18,108,956 25,797 423,141,472

Total public works 405,058,313 18,108,956 25,797 423,141,472

Health and welfare:
Department of human services 5,733,076 32,447               279,437 5,486,086
Health department 4,065,600 4,065,600
One stop job center 469,811 469,811

Total health and welfare 10,268,487 32,447 279,437 10,021,497

Culture and recreation:
Parks 7,789,731 426,181 8,215,912

Total culture and recreation 7,789,731 426,181 8,215,912

Total governmental funds
capital assets 616,076,311$      30,800,101$       9,058,295$          637,818,117$       

637,818,117$       

* This schedule presents only the capital balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in 
internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets for the internal service funds are
included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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Miscellaneous
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Human Services Fund 

Schedule of EBT Authorizations, Warrant 
Expenditures, and Total Expenditures 
For the year ended December 31, 2007 

A B C D E 
EBT County Share Expenditures EBT plus Total County

Authorizations of EBT Auth. by Warrant Warrant Exp Expenditures
5,663,947$      20,458$        $                   5,663,947$       20,458$            
3,760,490$      $                 424,681$        4,185,171$       424,681$          
9,963,650$      3,088,399$    4,920,069$      14,883,719$     8,008,468$        

$                    $                 9,046,808$      9,046,808$       9,046,808$        
31,350,578$    6,353,627$    7,534,010$      38,884,588$     13,887,637$      

4,743,222$      681,842$      134,820$        4,878,042$       816,662$          
1,987,175$      773$            469,081$        2,456,255$       469,853$          

$                    $                 4,544,745$      4,544,745$       4,544,745$        
9,774,875$      980,366$      242,271$        10,017,146$     1,222,636$        

$                    $                 185,459$        $                     185,459$          
$                    $                 1,387,933$      $                     1,387,933$        

67,243,937$    11,125,465$  28,889,876$    94,560,422$     40,015,341$      
45,563,415$    $                 $                   45,563,415$     $                     

112,807,353$   11,125,465$  28,889,876$    140,123,837$    40,015,341$      

A. EBT Authorizations reflect Human Services payments authorized by El Paso County and paid by CDHS.
B. County Share of EBT Transactions are reported as a reduction of State cash advances to the Count
C. Expenditures by warrant reflects cash disbursements from the County
D. EBT Authorizations (A) plus Warrants (C) reflects the total State, Federal and County participation in

Human Services
programs and recorded on a Cash Basis in the State Financial System (CFM S)

E. Total County Expenditures reflects the net disbursements by warrant (C) plus County Share of EBTs (B)
and recorded on a M odified Accrual Basis in the County Financial System
*** Grants/Other reflect expenditures in the County Financial System Only, and noted on CFM S as Settled

outside CFM S

Program

Administration
TANF
LEAP

Old Age Pension

Child Welfare

    Grand Total
Food Assistance

    Sub-Total
Grants/Other ***

Senior Service/Vet's
Child Care

IV-D Administration
AND

Core Services
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Local Highway Finance Report 
Financial Planning 02/01

The p ublic rep ort burden for this information collection is estimated to average 380 hours annually .  Form # 350-050-36
City  or County :
El Paso County
YEA R ENDING :
December 2007

This Information From The Records Of: County  of El Paso, Colorado Prep ared By : Vlad Tverdokhlib, Budget/Grants Analy st
Phone: 719-520-6482

A.     Local         B.       Local           C.  Receipts from    D.  Receipts from  
Motor-Fuel Motor-Vehicle S tate  Highway- Federal Highway

Taxes Taxes User Taxes Administration
1.  Total receip ts available
2.  M inus amount used for collection exp enses
3.  M inus amount used for nonhighway  p urp oses
4.  M inus amount used for mass transit
5.  Remainder used for highway  p urp oses 

AM OUNT AM OUNT
A.  Receipts from local sources: A.  Local highway disbursements:
     1.  Local highway -user taxes      1.  Cap ital outlay  (from p age 2) 11,726,874
          a.  M otor Fuel  (from Item I.A.5.)      2.  M aintenance: 5,005,708
          b.  M otor Vehicle (from Item I.B.5.)      3.  Road and street services:
          c.  Total (a.+b.)           a.  T raffic control op erations 897,935
     2.  General fund ap p rop riations           b.  Snow and ice removal 2,423,417
     3.  Other local imp osts (from p age 2) 14,905,919           c.  Other 3,513,849
     4.  M iscellaneous local receip ts (from p age 2) 8,866,462           d.  Total  (a. through c.) 6,835,201
     5.  Transfers from toll facilit ies      4.  General administration & miscellaneous 10,859,774
     6.  Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes:      5.  Highway  law enforcement and safety
          a.  Bonds - Original Issues      6.  Total  (1 through 5) 34,427,557
          b.  Bonds - Refunding Issues B.  Debt service  on local obligations:
          c.  Notes      1.  Bonds:
          d.  Total (a. + b. + c.) 0           a.  Interest
     7.  Total (1 through 6) 23,772,381           b.  Redemp tion
B.  Private  Contributions           c.  Total (a. + b.) 0
C.  Receipts from S tate  government      2.  Notes:
       (from p age 2) 9,904,239           a.  Interest
D.  Receipts from Federal Government           b.  Redemp tion
       (from p age 2) 422,757           c.  Total (a. + b.) 0
E.  Total receipts (A.7 + B + C + D) 34,099,377     3.  Total  (1.c + 2.c) 0

C.  Payments to S tate  for highways
D.  Payments to toll  facil ities
E.  Total disbursements (A.6 + B.3 + C + D) 34,427,557

Op ening Debt Amount Issued Redemp tions Closing Debt
A.  Bonds (Total) 0
        1.  Bonds (Refunding Portion)
B.  Notes (Total) 0

A. Beginning Balance B. Total Receip ts C. Total Disbursements D. Ending Balance E. Reconciliat ion
11,660,135 34,099,377 34,427,557 11,331,955 0

Notes and Comments:

FO RM FHWA-536 (Rev. 1-05)           PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE (Next Page)

V.  LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE

ITEM

II.  RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES

IV.   LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show all entries at  p ar)

ITEM
 AND STREET PURPOSES

I.  DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE

ITEM

III.  DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD

LOCAL HIGHW AY  FINANCE REPORT
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STATE:
Colorado
YEAR ENDING (mm/y y ):
December 2007

AMO UNT AMO UNT
A.3.  O ther local imposts: A.4.  Miscellaneous local receipts:
    a.  Prop erty  Taxes and Assessments 8,250,816           a.  Interest on investments 584,476
    b.  Other local imp osts:           b.  T raffic Fines & Penalit ies
        1.  Sales Taxes           c. Parking Garage Fees
        2.  Infrastructure & Imp act Fees 459,681           d.  Parking M eter Fees
        3.  Liens           e.  Sale of Surp lus Prop erty
        4. Licenses           f.  Charges for Services
        5. Sp ecific Ownership  &/or Other 6,195,422           g.  Other M isc. Receip ts 47,265
        6.  Total (1. through 5.) 6,655,103           h.  Other 8,234,721
    c.  Total (a. + b.) 14,905,919           i.  Total (a. through h.) 8,866,462

(Carry forward t o page 1) (Carry forward to page 1) 

AMO UNT AMO UNT
C.   Receipts from S tate  Government D.  Receipts from Federal Government
    1.  Highway -user taxes 9,291,183     1.  FHWA (from Item I.D.5.)
    2.  State general funds     2.  Other Federal agencies:
    3.  Other State funds:         a.  Forest Service 14,899
        a.  State bond p roceeds         b.  FEM A
        b.  Project M atch         c.  HUD
        c.  M otor Vehicle Registrat ions 613,056         d.  Federal Transit  Admin 337,271
        d. Other  (Sp ecify )         e.  U.S. Corp s of Engineers
        e.  Other (Sp ecify )         f.  Other Federal 70,587
         f.  Total (a. through e.) 613,056         g.  Total (a. through f.) 422,757
   4.  Total (1. + 2. + 3.f) 9,904,239     3.  Total (1. + 2.g)

(Carry forward to page 1) 

ON NATIONAL OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY HIGHWAY TOTAL

SYSTEM SYSTEM
(a) (b) (c)

A.1.  Capital outlay:
          a.  Right-Of-Way  Costs 24,340 24,340
          b.  Engineering Costs 595,268 595,268
          c.  Construction:
               (1). New Facilit ies 8,234,721 8,234,721
               (2).  Cap acity  Imp rovements 0
               (3).  Sy stem Preservation 2,872,545 2,872,545
               (4).  Sy stem Enhancement & Op eration 0
               (5).  Total Construction  (1) + (2) + (3) + (4) 0 11,107,266 11,107,266
         d.  Total Cap ital Outlay  (Lines 1.a. + 1.b. + 1.c.5) 0 11,726,874 11,726,874

(Carry forward to page 1) 
Notes and Comments:

FO RM FHWA-536 (Rev.1-05)           PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE

III.  DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

II.  RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

LOCAL HIGHW AY  FINANCE REPORT

ITEM ITEM

ITEM ITEM
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III. STATISTICAL SECTION
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Statistical Section 

This part of the El Paso County comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context 
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary 
information says about the County's overall financial health. 

FINANCIAL TRENDS

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County's financial performance 
and fiscal health have changed over time. 

Net Assets by Component 
Changes in Net Assets 

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 

REVENUE CAPACITY

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the County's most significant sources of revenue. 

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 

Principal Sales Tax Payers 
General Fund Property Tax Levies and Collections 

DEBT CAPACITY

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the County's current level of 
debt and the County's ability to issue debt in the future. 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within 
which the County's financial activities take place. 

Demographic and Economic Statistics 
Principal Employers – Private Sector 

OPERATING INFORMATION

This schedule contains information regarding the number of employees in various job categories and types of 
assets by function/department. 

Full-Time Equivalent County Employees by Function/Program 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program 
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Schedule 1 
El Paso County 
Net Assets by Component 
Last Three Fiscal Years 

2005 2006 2007
Governmental activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 135,624,461$      473,797,276 $      568,270,750 $      
Restricted 5,652,345 5,763,652 11,650,811
Unrestricted 27,478,459 20,658,649 (104,993,011)

Total governmental activities net assets 168,755,265$     500,219,577$     474,928,550$

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,074,434$          1,387,518 $          1,358,758 $          
Unrestricted 4,283,618 3,219,917 2,662,302

Total business-type activities net assets 5,358,052$         4,607,435$          4,021,060$         

Primary government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 136,698,895$      475,184,794 $      569,629,508 $      
Restricted 5,652,345 5,763,652 11,650,811
Unrestricted 31,762,077 23,878,566 (102,330,709)

Total primary government net assets 174,113,317$     504,827,012$     478,949,610$

Data source:
Statement of Net Assets, EPC Financial Statements
El Paso County Financial Statements

Fiscal Year
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Schedule 2 
El Paso County 
Changes in Net Assets 
Last Three Fiscal Years 

Expenses 2005 2006 2007
Governmental activities:
     General government 53,148,164$        49,588,735$        58,370,104$        
     Public Safety 63,502,622         68,322,881         85,943,749         
     Public Works 17,441,950         15,126,834         17,968,376         
     Health and Welfare 52,030,311         54,071,254         59,075,189         
     Culture and recreation 3,293,236           3,049,572           3,774,357           
     Auxiliary services 461,330              276,546              1,255,626           
    Outside agencies                          6,636,067           6,132,634           
     Interest on long-term debt 4,665,637           4,571,516           6,578,057           
Total governmnental activities expenses 194,543,250        201,643,405        239,098,092

Business-type activities:
     County Fair                                                                            
     Arts facility                                                                            
     Waste management 611,002              657,857              794,749              
     Land Development 1,293,983           3,458,822           3,120,259           
Total business-type activities expenses 1,904,985           4,116,679           3,915,008           
Total primary government expenses 196,448,235$      205,760,084$      243,013,100$      

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
     Charges for services:
          General government 16,823,845$        17,205,184$        15,965,622$        
          Public safety 2,961,540           2,743,137           3,266,421           
          Public works 99,519               358,491              602,212              
          Health and Welfare 392,601              575,555              383,931              
          Culture and recreation 419,361              410,763              542,084              
          Outside agencies 3,546                 240,988              213,393              
     Operating grants and contributions 52,447,436 58,034,608 57,120,280
     Capital grants and contributions 8,670,183 26,960,492 15,370,037
Total governmental activities program revenues 81,818,031 106,529,218 93,463,980

Business-type activities:
     Charges for services:
          County Fair
          Arts facility
          Waste management 765,166 761,139 846,968
          Land Development 2,595,240 2,285,934 1,957,808
     Operating grants and contributions
Total business-type activities program revenues 3,360,406 3,047,073 2,804,776
Total primary government program revenues 85,178,437$       109,576,291$     96,268,756$       

Fiscal Year

(Continued)
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Schedule 2 - Continued 
El Paso County 
Changes in Net Assets 
Last Three Fiscal Years 

Net (Expense) Revenue 2005 2006 2007
Governmental activities (112,725,219) (95,114,187) (145,634,112)
Business-type activities 1,093,430 (1,069,606) (1,110,232)
Total primary government net expense (111,631,789) $     (96,183,793) $       (146,744,344) $     

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:
     Taxes
          Property taxes 33,625,151 $        35,549,331 $        36,748,742 $        
          Sales taxes 67,839,928 68,520,201 69,146,880
          Other taxes 9,184,444 11,392,744 9,931,960
     Investment earnings 4,433,373 3,429,584 4,818,667
     Gain/Loss on sale of capital assets 1,140,836 (179,211) 80,732
     Transfers (17,648) (486,487) (383,896)
Total governmental activities 116,206,084 118,226,162 120,343,085

Business-type activities:
     Investment earnings 128,952 179,621 139,961
     Loss on sale of capital assets (3,433,225)   
     Transfers 17,648 486,487 383,896
Total business-type activities (3,286,625) 666,108 523,857
Total primary government 112,919,459 $      118,892,270 $      120,866,942 $      

Change in Net Assets
Governmental activities 3,480,865$          23,111,975$        (25,291,027)$       
Business-type activities (2,193,195)          (403,498)             (586,375)             
Total primary government 1,287,670$          22,708,477$        (25,877,402)$       

Data source: 
Statement of Activities
El Paso County Financial Statements

Fiscal Year
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Schedule 3 
El Paso County 
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 
Last Three Fiscal Years 

2005 2006 2007
General Fund
     Reserved 1,075,248 $          7,167,536 $          5,609,630 $          
     Unreserved 18,255,711 14,322,359 14,729,641
Total general fund 19,330,959 $        21,489,895 $        20,339,271 $        

All Other Governmental Funds
     Reserved 18,295,204 $        4,346,714 $          36,950,558 $        
     Unreserved, reported in:
          Special revenue funds 11,138,582 13,316,364 13,282,240
          Capital projects funds 2,077,759   
          Debt service funds
Total all other governmental funds 31,511,545 $        17,663,078 $        50,232,798 $        

Total governmental funds 50,842,504$       39,152,973$        70,572,069$       

Data source:
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
El Paso County Financial Statements

Fiscal Year
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Schedule 4 
El Paso County 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year
1998 1999 2000 2001

REVENUES
Property taxes 28,301,314 $     31,881,652 $     34,414,074 $     30,925,258 $     
Sales taxes 48,081,408 52,317,559 58,415,299 61,666,586
Specific ownership taxes 4,666,970 5,297,249 5,293,623 5,684,220
Intergovernmental 57,746,128 61,525,576 71,490,405 72,219,198
Fees and fines 381,323 213,382 276,355 285,260
Licenses and permits 2,214,668 2,514,316 2,706,926 2,766,930
Charges for services 12,930,445 13,765,291 13,352,044 16,267,961
Investment earnings 3,927,129 3,444,110 5,572,011 3,817,483
M iscellaneous 6,194,318 4,073,122 6,012,791 5,737,042
Total revenues 164,443,703 175,032,257 197,533,528 199,369,938

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 40,337,033      42,423,756      44,322,211      48,164,585
Public safety 34,915,626      36,865,296      38,246,793      41,722,918
Public works 20,082,091      21,398,459      28,171,087      23,433,218
Health and welfare 52,141,410      52,918,360      63,185,698      62,817,472
Culture and recreation
Outside agencies 3,209,904        2,478,130        2,435,445        1,243,792        
Auxiliary services 4,710,624        4,697,579        5,355,459        5,176,635        

Debt service:
Principal 43,362            63,210            809,810           1,324,436        
Interest and other charges
Issuance costs

Capital outlay 10,968,948      10,844,121      13,619,283      12,245,687
Total expenditures 166,408,998     171,688,911     196,145,786     196,128,743

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,965,295) 3,343,346 1,387,742 3,241,195

Other Financing Sources (uses)
Refund of bond issuance costs
Certificates of participation issued
Premium on certificates of participation
Capital lease financing 10,557,685 279,437
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 49,990 300,851 334,478 1,300,575
Transfers in 10,799,198 9,720,367 12,793,655 12,291,171
Transfers out (10,799,198) (9,720,367) (12,793,655) (12,252,624)
Assumption of deficit fund balance by 
internal service fund

Total other financing sources (uses) 49,990 10,858,536 334,478 1,618,559

Net change in fund balances (1,915,305)$     14,201,882$    1,722,220$       4,859,754$

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital 
expenditures 0.03% 0.04% 0.44% 0.72%

Data Source:
El Paso County Financial Statements
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

24,764,323 $     34,134,150 $     32,452,212 $     33,625,151 $     35,549,331 $     36,748,742 $     
60,214,529 60,324,356 64,372,866 67,839,928 68,520,201 69,146,880
10,435,135 9,419,579 10,356,101 9,184,444 11,392,744 9,931,960
55,080,511 57,464,012 51,017,932 52,479,434 55,345,530 53,512,924

832,409 631,149 592,879 842,382 898,042 836,354
121,301 148,948 266,889 320,994 284,181 289,866

14,283,695 17,606,093 15,538,738 16,786,843 16,897,769 15,903,920
1,325,299 1,485,815 1,783,878 4,428,366 3,431,443 4,785,997
2,986,624 3,050,488 4,292,448 5,432,838 8,193,869 7,918,558

170,043,826 184,264,590 180,673,943 190,940,380 200,513,110 199,075,201

53,926,618      43,835,780      46,075,565      49,601,464      45,367,491      43,575,692      
43,564,117      53,453,463      54,051,253      60,319,755      64,983,113      66,593,803      
14,982,192      13,731,408      12,858,711      13,105,527      14,112,138      15,876,121      
54,149,719      56,031,953      49,884,332      50,630,532      52,662,497      51,648,706      

2,738,749        2,819,973        2,456,732        2,928,470        2,726,991        2,837,235        
6,636,067        5,473,129        

528,567           581,881           335,263           345,991           328,360           581,234           
                                            

1,617,938        1,743,693        1,225,000        2,555,000        3,490,000        3,375,000        
582,987           4,584,467        4,584,989        4,648,895        4,570,462        6,588,783        

1,652,925        183,888           
14,972,896      27,769,819      36,200,625      46,409,060      16,895,596      10,230,546      

188,716,708     204,552,437     207,856,358     230,544,694     211,772,715     206,780,249

(18,672,882) (20,287,847) (27,182,415) (39,604,314) (11,259,605) (7,705,048)

33,861 (645,716)
84,975,000 6,970,000 39,429,749

1,607,413 46,576
395,719

38,101 119,364 55,115 1,155,648 56,561 78,291
10,491,140 11,254,281 12,234,379 13,473,846 18,702,244 16,638,988

(14,290,879) (11,376,514) (12,537,873) (13,131,247) (19,188,731) (17,022,884)

83,216,494 30,992 6,122,481 1,498,247 (429,926) 39,124,144

64,543,612 $     (20,256,855) $    (21,059,934) $    (38,106,067)$ (11,689,531)$   31,419,096 $     

2.22% 3.58% 3.49% 3.91% 4.14% 5.07%
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Revenue Capacity
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Schedule 5 
El Paso County 
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Assessment Payable
Year in

Ended Year Vacant Residential Commercial Industrial Agricultural
December 31, Land Property Property Property Property

1998 1999 216,879,380 1,800,994,280 1,131,151,030 332,188,760 15,829,170
1999 2000 259,604,200 2,062,108,100 1,248,914,180 356,777,920 15,528,770
2000 2001 239,694,050 2,161,401,520 1,319,055,820 343,138,320 9,625,080
2001 2002 302,075,500 2,403,130,940 1,529,818,180 368,301,950 10,844,990
2002 2003 285,479,270 2,527,692,430 1,566,835,300 415,302,620 11,230,610
2003 2004 304,921,310 2,420,184,700 1,586,881,330 352,325,230 12,189,850
2004 2005 281,213,190 2,515,131,740 1,624,789,480 325,357,000 13,713,710
2005 2006 335,975,160 2,892,970,890 1,723,592,810 308,133,320 14,523,730
2006 2007 327,623,600 3,032,146,110 1,775,643,960 302,573,000 14,489,940
2007 2008 411,181,000 3,476,511,140 1,998,462,020 311,518,010 15,032,210

*Note: Total Taxable Assessed Value is already adjusted for tax exempt property value.

Data Source:
El Paso County Assessor's Office
Abstracts of Assessment
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Total
Total Taxable Direct

Natural Oil Public Assessed Tax *Tax-Exempt
Resources and Gas Utilities Value Rate Property

4,086,280 93,860 182,423,300 3,683,646,060 9.430 998,991,730
4,597,560 0 195,542,100 4,143,072,830 8.339 717,535,380
5,037,600 0 192,377,800 4,270,330,190 8.339 1,090,699,030
5,438,030 0 201,121,000 4,820,730,590 7.821 1,171,535,730
5,356,810 0 252,852,100 5,064,749,140 7.880 1,195,377,570
5,174,850 0 224,088,900 4,905,766,170 7.947 1,177,685,410
7,516,620 0 248,252,200 5,015,973,940 8.012 1,232,798,230
7,566,860 0 241,063,500 5,523,826,270 7.673 1,264,464,180
8,026,450 0 248,220,800 5,708,723,860 7.710 1,282,937,580
7,955,940 0 269,088,800 6,489,749,120 7.514 1,463,061,020
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Schedule 6 
El Paso County 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Taxes Payable 1999 2000 2001 2002
Assessment Year 1998 1999 2000 2001

County direct rates
     General 2.527 2.793 2.814 3.167
     Abatement 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
     Road & Bridge 2.931 2.350 2.350 1.842
     Social Services 2.112 1.687 1.687 1.324
     Capital 0.800 0.707 0.707 0.660
     Insurance 0.100 0.021 0.000 0.000
     Retirement 0.960 0.781 0.781 0.728
     Debt Service 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
     Fleet 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.100

City and town rates
     Calhan 17.058 17.248 17.563 16.856
     Colorado Springs 5.607 5.323 5.323 5.032
     Fountain 10.239 10.239 10.239 10.239
     Green M ountain Falls 14.588 14.588 14.588 14.588
     M anitou Springs 16.850 15.981 15.981 17.836
     M onument 8.920 7.607 7.042 6.407
     Palmer Lake 14.310 12.909 24.560 19.442
     Ramah 19.827 19.827 19.827 19.827

Levy Ranges for the following districts are:
Fire Protection Districts 1.944-9.500 1.944-10.341 1.944-9.500 1.865-10.466
Sanitation Districts 0.749-9.638 0.679-7.731 0.679-7.028 0.664-5.439
Water Districts 0.503-12.236 0.503-11.238 0.532-11.238 0.532-11.238
Sanitation & Water Districts 3.535-26.370 3.631-30.863 3.758-30.863 3.191-26.960
Special Improvement Districts 1.678-43.500 1.653-43.000 1.653-55.000 1.009-60.000
Regional Library District 3.548 3.336 3.448 3.216
M etropolitan Districts 0.463-100.000 0.425-100.000 4.192-100.000 3.568-100.000
School Districts 26.135-60.169 26.182-58.159 26.143-58.897 24.591-58.897

Data Source:
El Paso County Assessor's Office
Abstracts of Assessment
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

2.864 2.923 2.995 2.599 2.179 4.182
0.059 0.067 0.065 0.057 0.037 0.037
1.582 1.582 1.582 1.582 1.568 1.280
1.204 1.454 1.319 1.319 1.290 0.000
1.443 0.893 1.023 0.963 1.450 1.320
0.000 0.300 0.300 0.400 0.450 0.000
0.728 0.728 0.728 0.753 0.736 0.695
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

17.307 17.563 17.563 17.525 17.563 17.563
5.032 5.032 4.944 4.944 4.944 4.944

10.239 10.239 10.239 10.239 10.239 10.239
14.588 14.588 14.588 14.588 14.588 15.558
18.277 17.368 17.836 17.284 17.284 15.951

6.469 6.454 6.408 5.872 6.458 6.289
20.038 21.536 21.753 19.070 16.544 15.340
19.827 19.827 19.827 19.827 19.827 19.827

1.899-10.797 2.139-10.842 0.467-12.813 2.130-12.527 2.322-12.660 1.635-12.423
0.664-4.999 0.665-5.254 0.666-3.714 0.650-3.759 0.650-4.134 0.650-4.500

0.532-12.870 0.532-15.300 0.532-16.279 0.532-14.437 0.532-14.437 0.534-14.437
3.174-26.960 3.429-32.198 3.981-34.044 3.831-26.995 4.142-31.840 4.065-31.423
1.009-60.000 1.009-65.000 1.000-49.500 1.000-45.000 1.000-45.000 1.000-51.000

3.271 3.434 3.495 3.296 3.515 3.325
2.068-100.000 2.068-100.000 2.068-100.000 2.068-100.000 2.068-100.000 2.031-100.000
24.686-58.897 21.717-60.216 21.568-60.216 20.096-60.216 19.699-60.216 19.715-60.216
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Schedule 7 
El Paso County 
Principal Sales Tax Payers 
Current Year and Three Years Ago 

Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total 

Sales County Sales County
Tax Sales Tax Tax Sales Tax

Taxpayer Collected Rank Collected Collected Rank Collected
Wal M art Stores, Inc. 2,809,241$     1 4.96% 3,194,205$     1 5.29%
Qwest Corporation 1,553,587 2 2.74% 1,325,973 3 2.34%
Home Depot USA, Inc. 1,381,578 3 2.44% 1,615,248 2 2.85%
Target Corporation 1,024,936 4 1.81% 1,051,705 5 1.86%
City of Colorado Springs 1,001,706 5 1.77% 1,085,993 4 1.92%
Broadmoor Hotel, Inc. 819,993 6 1.45% 896,846 6 1.58%
Sam's West, Inc. 697,755 7 1.23% 715,762 7 1.26%
Best Buy Stores, LP 600,478 8 1.06% 654,644 8 1.16%
Phil Long Ford, LLC 598,438 9 1.06% 613,110 9 1.08%
Lowe's HIW, Inc. 573,211 10 1.01% 563,089 10 0.99%
Verizon Wireless (VAW), LLC

Total 11,060,924$    19.54% 11,716,574$   20.35%

56619531.85 60346793.35

65309274.26
Note: This schedule reflects only the total sales tax collected by the State of Colorado

Data Source:
El Paso County Financial Statements
Colorado Department of Revenue
*Data not available prior to 2003

2003 2004
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Percentage Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total of Total 

Sales County Sales County Sales County
Tax Sales Tax Tax Sales Tax Tax Sales Tax

Collected Rank Collected Collected Rank Collected Collected Rank Collected
3,427,575 1 5.38% 3,522,957$     1 5.47% 3,766,349$     1 5.77%
1,394,574 4 2.19% 1,340,919 3 2.08% 1,267,467 5 1.94%
1,876,642 2 2.95% 1,650,259 2 2.56% 1,390,911 3 2.13%
1,111,509 5 1.75% 1,189,186 5 1.85% 1,288,386 4 1.97%
1,444,928 3 2.27% 1,337,349 4 2.08% 1,454,791 2 2.23%

920,445 6 1.45% 1,058,353 6 1.64% 1,126,944 6 1.73%
735,353 7 1.15% 749,602 9 1.16% 757,237 10 1.16%
689,640 9 1.08% 735,419 10 1.14% 757,812 9 1.16%

599,784 10 0.94% 975,791 7 1.51% 779,751 7 1.19%
718,781 8 1.13% 773,302 8 1.20% 767,202 8 1.17%

12,919,231$    20.28% 13,333,137$    20.69% 13,356,850$   20.45%

63692676.3 64437977 65309274.26

200720062005
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Schedule 8 
El Paso County 
General Fund Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal
Year Taxes Levied Collections

Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
December 31, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy

1998 4,835,666 4,985,686 103.10% (5,104) 4,980,582 103.00%
1999 8,201,640 8,627,475 105.19% (7,687) 8,619,788 105.10%
2000 11,571,602 11,480,750 99.21% (12,809) 11,467,941 99.10%
2001 10,163,811 10,127,394 99.64% (2,121) 10,125,273 99.62%
2002 5,554,833 5,518,791 99.35% (20,424) 5,498,367 98.98%
2003 12,519,209 12,462,880 99.55% (1,571) 12,461,309 99.54%
2004 12,588,717 12,499,386 99.29% (13,238) 12,486,148 99.19%
2005 13,231,072 13,163,179 99.49% (28,822) 13,134,357 99.27%
2006 13,038,236 12,812,122 98.27% 4,145 12,816,267 98.30%
2007 11,128,530         11,087,810 99.63% 17,856 11,105,666 99.79%

Data Source:
El Paso County Revenue Summary

Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
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Debt Capacity



152      County of El Paso – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 

Schedule 9 
El Paso County 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Certificates Total Percentage
of Capital Primary of Personal Per

Fiscal Year Participation Leases Government Income Capita
1998 4,105,000 78,713 4,183,713 0.62% 25,876
1999 14,055,000 40,974 14,095,974 0.19% 27,387
2000 13,190,000 13,190,000 0.22% 29,603
2001 11,695,000 274,701 11,969,701 0.25% 30,136
2002 96,717,413 612,481 97,329,894 0.03% 29,983
2003 95,023,116 498,788 95,521,904 0.03% 30,592
2004 99,770,923 378,399 100,149,322 0.03% 32,018
2005 96,816,254 250,907 97,067,161 0.03% 33,577
2006 93,258,727 115,880 93,374,607 0.04% 34,189
2007 123,912,359 1,716,693 125,629,052 N/A *

* Data not available
Data source:
El Paso County Financial Statements
US Department of Commerce

Bureau of Economic Analysis

Governmental Activitives
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Demographic and Economic Information
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Schedule 10 
El Paso County 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 
Last Ten Calendar Years 

Change Change El Paso County
from from as a
Prior El Paso Prior El Paso Percentage

Year Colorado Period County Period Colorado County of Colorado
1998 4,116,639 2.45% 498,062 2.29% 28,784 25,876 89.90%
1999 4,226,018 2.66% 509,044 2.20% 30,492 27,387 89.82%
2000 4,338,789 2.67% 520,571 2.26% 33,367 29,603 88.72%
2001 4,446,919 2.49% 533,530 2.49% 34,481 30,136 87.40%
2002 4,521,798 1.68% 541,066 1.41% 34,014 29,983 88.15%
2003 4,586,780 1.44% 547,571 1.20% 34,059 30,592 89.82%
2004 4,653,004 1.44% 554,587 1.28% 35,810 32,018 89.41%
2005 4,722,460 1.49% 565,341 1.94% 37,510 33,577 89.51%
2006 4,804,353 1.73% 576,240 1.93% 39,491 34,189 86.57%
2007 4,908,152 2.16% 597,632 3.71% 41,042 * *

* Data not available
Data source:
US Department of Commerce

Bureau of Economic Analysis

Colorado Department of Local Affairs
Colorado Department of Education
US Department of Labor
US Census Bureau

Population Per Capita Personal Income
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Public Motor 
School Vehicles

Employed Unemployed Unemployment Enrollment Registered
Rate

250,252 10,738 4.1% * 520,715
258,363 9,287 3.5% 93,883 553,868
257,305 7,467 2.8% 94,012 598,278
256,682 11,960 4.5% 96,379 652,372
257,736 17,444 6.3% 97,959 594,193
261,557 17,840 6.4% 99,165 583,461
267,952 16,128 5.7% 101,115 594,065
272,215 15,252 5.3% 103,069 445,909
284,819 12,663 4.3% 104,608 443,464
288,436 13,199 4.4% 105,157 479,917

El Paso County Labor Force
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Operating Information 
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Schedule 12 
El Paso County 
Full-time Equivalent County Government 
Employees by Function/Program 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function/Program 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
County Commissioners 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

Internal Audit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0

County Assessor 68 68 63 63 66 66 66 66 66 66

County Clerk & Recorder -Operations 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26
M otor Vehicle 79 79 79 79 79 79 79 79 83 83
Elections 16 16 16 16 16 16 17 17 17 17
Driver's Licenses 0 0 0 0 2 2 4 4 5 5

County Coroner 7 7 7 7 8 9 13 13 13 16

County Sheriff -Operations 224 226 222 226 229 230 231 231 239 240
Detentions 320 319 297 297 297 305 333 336 359 362
Pretrial Services (P.R. Bond) 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Office of Emergency M anagement 3 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

County Treasurer 18 18 18 18 18 19 19 19 19 19

Public Trustee 10 10 11 11 14 14 14 14 14 14

County Attorney -General Fund 9 9 9 9 9 9 8 8 10 9
Useful Public Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0
Dept. of Human Services 10 14 25 25 26 26 23 23 17 17
Employment Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 6

District Attorney - EPC Funded 132 137 144 146 152 157 157 157 163 177
Teller County Funded 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1
Grant Funded 0 0 0 0 9 10 10 10 13 13

Human Services -General 350 350 350 350 351 361 361 361 360 360

Senior Services 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 3

Veterans Services 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Pikes Peak Workforce Center 0 30 34 34 100 100 100 100 100 100

Full-time Equivalent Employees
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Function/Program 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Administrative Services -Administration 4 5 7 7 5 7 5 5 4 5

Community Relations 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
County Fair 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 0 0 0
CSU Extension 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Development Review 0 0 0 0 6 14 14 30 36 34
Land Use Study 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 5 5 5
Economic Development 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 0 0
Employee Benefits/M ed Serv 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 8 12 16
Environmental Services 0 0 0 2 7 7 9 9 9 10
Facilities 45 46 47 47 46 46 49 51 51 51
Financial Services 11 16 16 16 17 23 24 24 25 25
Fleet Services 0 0 0 0 33 32 32 32 32 33
Forestry & Noxious Weeds 2 2 2 2 2 2 0 0 0 0
Human Resources 5 6 6 6 8 11 5 5 0 0
Information Services 57 54 58 59 64 70 69 69 68 69
Justice Services 0 13 13 13 14 14 14 17 15 15
Planning 15 16 18 18 18 17 16 0 0 0
Procurements & Contracts 6 7 7 7 6 6 7 7 7 7
Public Communications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 3
Risk M anagement 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 0 0
Security 29 29 29 29 29 34 35 44 45 45
Solid Waste 2 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4
800 M Hz 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1

Parks & Community Resources -Parks 42 44 43 41 39 41 40 41 41 41
Penrose Equestrian Center 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 0 0
Pikes Peak Center 7 10 10 10 10 10 10 0 0 0

Transportation -Engineering 27 27 27 29 26 30 30 30 24 24

Road & Bridge Fund 185 194 194 194 161 158 159 162 166 164

Health and Environment 205 208 208 208 208 208 208 194 194 225

Retirement 0 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Total 1,961 2,032 2,031 2,037 2,144 2,210 2,245 2,241 2,278 2,327

Data Source:
El Paso County Final Budget

Full-time Equivalent Employees
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Schedule 13 
El Paso County 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function/Program 1998 1999 2000* 2001
BoCC Administrative Services
  Board Meetings 165 175 122
  Board/Comm ittee/Commission Appointments 116 120 100

Facilities Managem ent
  Number of build ings maintained 72 72
  Square feet total maintained 2,200,000 2,200,000

Parks
  Acres of Regional Parks, Recreation areas
    and conservation lands 3,247 4,000
  Miles of Regional, Park & Nature Trails 57.1 70
  County Office Sites (landscape maintenance) 9 17 17

Procurement and Contracts
  Purchase Orders Issued 3,000 2,422 853
  Purchase Orders Issued (dollars) 51,089,952 53,775,996
  Surplus sales ($) 50,000 217,865 372,709

Financial/Budget
  Payroll Serviced 54,187 53,161

Journal Entries Processed 1,271 1,300
  Processed Payment Requests 23,501 49,405

          Public safety
  Claim s Subm itted 1,441 1,175 2,138
  Personal Contacts (excl DSS) 3,700 3,939 5,124
  Telephone Information 15,000 12,104 17,672
  Medicaid Nursing Home Clients 80 19 25
  Briefings on VA Benefits 4,550 3,313 4,076
  HS quality assurance inquiries 40 31 44

Human Services - Senior Services
  Number seniors/participation levels 42,276 46,503 20,063

CSU Extension
  Printed brochures and  SIAs 232,844 175,133 151,972
  Phone, walk-in, individual 23,265 49,543 42,123

County Attorney - General Fund
  Board of Equalization 466 1,354 1,370
  Contracts/Agreements (drafted or reviewed) 450 600 750
  Litigation (For and against the county) 670 645 705
  Liquor License matters 14 21 20
  Notices of Claims review ed 47 50 90
  Ordinances (new) 3 1 2
  Resolu tions (drafted or reviewed) 60 70 90
  Written legal opinions 35 47 75
  Meetings/hearings attended 845 860 895

Safety and Risk Management
  Safety Training Sem inars -- Attendance 12 16
  Personal Safety & Aw areness consu ltations 220 220 250
  Wellness programs 12 12 20
  Employee orientations 6 36 48
  Safety training/m eetings 13 18
  Safety/Wellness publications/

website information 12 12 16
  Risk management & insurance consultations 825 275 800

Clerk and Recorder 
    Documents recorded 183,240 198,624 193,759
    Documents processed 90,000 101,000 215,735
    Meetings (agendas, m inutes, etc.) 176 165 122
  Vehicles Registered 533,000 553,868 652,372
  Number of precincts 358 354 355
  Ballot Combinations 75 55 47
  Registered Voters 300,000 316,767 322,566

Jurisd ictions for w hich elections
 are administered 100 100 107

Fiscal Year
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

126 125 134 125                  130                  148                  
112 100 70 122                  73                    94                     

120 121 121 124                  118                  120                  
2,200,000 2,246,207 2,246,207            2,414,566          2,343,423          2,124,011          

5,000 5,000 5,300 5,500                5,900                6,900                
80 85.0 85 85                    87                    93                     
17 17 10 10                    11                    11                     

831 900 885 875                  1,000                1,000                
54,659,536 57,154,000 94,063,491          60,000,000        70,000,000        75,000,000        

686,630 350,000 245,753              250,000            275,000            275,000            

49,103 49,893 53,821                54,062              52,673              52,937              
2,770 2,770 23,819                24,711              26,078              26,860              

56,005 54,503 57,674                63,376              67,739              71,125              

2,138 2,468 2,219                  2,338                3,185                3,200                
5,124 5,356 7,766                  8,640                8,800                9,200                

17,672 21,298 21,995                23,292              23,500              24,000              
25 48 50                      50                    50                    50                     

4,076 2,166 1,240                  1,630                2,450                2,500                
44 30 30                      130                  675 (all) 700                   

22,368 3,000 3,200                  3,500                3,900                4,100                

141,551 141,745 142,004              142,555            142,820            142,820            
67,068 69,623 68,950                72,770              73,125              73,125              

590 730 625                    650                  640                  650                  
750 775 400                    425                  435                  440                  
705 720 812                    820                  820                  830                  

20 20 20                      18                    18                    20                     
90 80 39                      35                    36                    40                     
2 2                       1                     1                     1                      

90 95 170                    180                  180                  185                  
75 75 78                      85                    95                    110                  

895 910 900                    925                  940                  930                  

16 16
275 275 300                    325                  350                  350                  

24 18 15                      24                    25                    25                     
48 170                    292                  300                  300                  
16 16

16 16 16                      16                    16                    16                     
900 900 1,100                  1,200                1,500                1,500                

234,569 298,968 215,111              203,454            200,000            190,000            
259,899 325,978 255,575              262,312            228,000            216,600            

1,890 2,054 2,098                  2,000                2,000                2,000                
428,479 424,226 438,644              451,803            452,598            459,387            

371 378 378                    381                  386                  396                  
120 25 77                      35                    35                    80                     

336,993 321,811 354,059              340,000            343,000            360,000            

110 146 162                    170                  170                  180                  

(Continued)
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Schedule 13 - Continued 
El Paso County 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function/Program 1998 1999 2000* 2001
C o unty Tre a s ure r
  A nnua l Ta x S ta te m e nts 188,648 192,552
  D e linque nt Ta x S ta te m e nts 10 ,163 11,929
  P ro pe rty Ta x P a ym e nts  P ro c e s s e d 304,795 313,580
  Ta x ro ll c ha nge s  (a ba te m e nts ) 1,600 1,695
  N o n-pro pe rty ta x re ve nue  tra ns a c tio ns 21,097 19,860
  Ta x Lie ns  S o ld--m a nufa c ture d ho us ing 135 150
  Ta x Lie ns  S o ld--re a l e s ta te 1,150 998
  Ta x Lie ns  re de e m e d 981 1,338
  Ta x De e ds  is s ue d 30 19
  C e rtific a te s  o f Ta xe s  D ue  R e po rts 35,390 35,105
  C o unty wa rra nts  pa id 38,000

C o unty As s e s s o r
  A bs tra c ts  pro vide d to  a ll ta xing  e n tit ie s ye s 135 115
  Te le pho ne  c a lls  ha ndle d 42,000 120,000 62,201
  M a ps  pro duc e d  fo r the  public 20,500 2,600 2,410
  A ppe a ls  he a rd by the  a s s e s s o r 2,000 8,000 4,936
  R e s ide nc e s  inve nto rie d a nd m e a s ure d 9,000 4,000 5,969
  P ro pe rty tra ns fe rs  lo gge d 25,000 32,300 49,900

D is tric t  Atto rne y
  F e lo ny c a s e s  pro s e c ute d 5 ,104 4,220 4,623
  T ra ffic  a nd m is de m e a no r c a s e s  pro s e c ute d 40,870 37,564 35,860
  J uve nile  c a s e s  pro s e c ute d 2 ,120 2,378 1,490

S he riff's  O ffic e  D e te n tio ns
  A ve ra ge  da ily po pula tio n - M e tro  & C J C 880 850 980
    In itia l inm a te  c la s s ific a tio ns 7,980 9,595 9,986
  To ta l a tte nda nc e , Inm a te  pro gra m s --C J C 76,000 40,235 47,768
  To ta l a tte nda nc e , Inm a te  pro gra m s --M e tro 42,000 28,804 27,455
  N um be r o f c o m m itm e nts 19,458 21,630 21,381
  N um be r o f re le a s e s 18,838 21,572 21,187
  N um be r o f p ris o ne r tra ns po rts 65,900 27,247 26,321

Tra ns po rta tio n /Engine e ring  in  la te r ye a rs
  M ile s  o f ro a d gra ve le d 50 37 35 6
  M ile s  o f dus t c o ntro l a pplie d 62 68 66 80
  M ile s  o f s urfa c e  tre a tm e nt a pplie d 40 41 66 30
  D ra ina ge  c ro s s pa ns  c o ns truc te d 17 29 20 26
  F e e t o f c urb , gutte r o r s ide wa lks 4,270 1,900 2,110 1,120
  M ile s  o f ro a d pa ve d 29 30 7 14
  P a ve d ro a ds  (m ile s ) 811 837 857 858
  G ra ve l ro a ds  (m ile s ) 1,077 1,068 1,068 1,073

S e lf Ins ura nc e  F und
  La ws uits /no tic e  o f c la im s 67 81 33
    Litiga tio ns  c o s t ($ ) 175,000 75,946 221,199
  P ro pe rty c la im s 65 55 48
    C o s t ($ ) 100,000 40,531 201,373
  Lia b ility c la im s 170 133 141
    C o s t ($ ) 200,000 74,008 258,720

S o lid  Wa s te  M a na ge m e nt F und
  H o us e ho ld c he m ic a l wa s te  pro gra m s 3 3 4
  Ya rd wa s te  c o lle c tio n pro gra m s /da ys 52 52 52
  B la c k F o re s t wildfire  m itiga tio n  m ulc h pro gra m s 49 49 49

Wo rke r's  C o m pe ns a tio n F und
  Wo rke rs ' c o m pe ns a tio n c la im s 338 326 336
  C la im s  c o s t ($ ) 600,000 476,100 922,294

Ec o no m ic  D e ve lo pm e nt
  B us ine s s e s  c e rtife d (Ente rprize  zo ne ) 440 413 382 411
  C o ntribu tio ns  to  Zo ne  pro je c ts 295 294 272 142
  Ente rprize  Zo ne  P ro je c ts 10 10 11 14
  A c tive  a ffo rda ble  ho us ing  pro gra m s /pro je c ts 31 40 55 61
  P e rs o na l P ro pe rty Ta x C re dit  A gre e m e nts 7 12 15 28

H um a n R e s o urc e s
  A pplic a tio ns  pro c e s s e d 8,000 10,000 10,030
  N um be r o f a utho rize d po s itio ns -E l P a s o  C o unty 2,001 2,033
  Em plo ye e  re c o gnitio n a wa rds 278 331 294

*Some data not available for 2000
Data Source:
El Paso County Budget Book

Fiscal Year
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

209,790 221,286 226,088                     231,896                    238,495                   245,295                   
9 ,923 10,275 13,508                         13,521                        13,288                       13,600                       

342,555 367,689 367,709                     376,266                   380,000                   390,000                   
3,159 1,060 406                              1,200                         1,000                         1,000                         

21,584 17,373 25,817                         26,000                      28,500                      29,000                      
202 240 201                               240                            200                            200                             

1,471 1,512 1,711                             2 ,000                        1,800                         2 ,000                        
1,747 1,611 2,004                          2 ,100                         2,100                         2,100                         

7 16 14                                 20                              20                              20                               
62,819 76,548 71,170                          72,000                      50,000                      50,000                      
35,020 33,086 33,086                        33,500                      33,500                      33,500                      

117 119 119                                162                             200                            227                             
63,000 67,000 60,000                        55,400                      47,000                      45,000                      

2 ,680 1,500 1,129                            900                            1,400                         2 ,095                        
760 5,244 1,113                             5,151                          951                             8 ,000                        

6 ,500 6,259 7,000                          6 ,500                        7,156                         5 ,372                        
50,300 50,800 52,300                        50,000                      44,000                      42,000                      

4 ,740 5,138 5,830                          6 ,120                         6 ,342                        6 ,596                        
37,487 40,953 43,239                        47,470                      31,040                       32,188                       

1,989 2,124 1,887                           1,976                         1,924                         1,989                         

1,092 1,131 1,209                           1,425                         1,427                         1,477                         
11,448 11,692 22,174                         24,000                      25,008                      25,063                      
56,100 56,724 45,000                        50,000                      54,000                      55,000                      
31,440 38,851 20,000                        c lo s e d c lo s e d c lo s e d
21,670 22,495 22,174                         24,782                      25,008                      25,063                      
21,252 22,529 12,763                         22,482                      24,734                      24,800                      
28,300 23,352 22,323                        22,993                      34,872                      38,359                      

37 60 65                                80                              66                              50                               
102 115 118                                123                             123                             123                              

12 8 8                                                                                               19                                
12 14 9                                   26                              28                              31                                

7 ,344 2,613 1,566                           6 ,385                        28,459                      9 ,500                        
19 18 5.7                               15                               19                               15                                

879 894 894                              900                            930                            921                              
1,074 1,076 1,075                           1,078                         1,073                         1,077                         

52 30 29                                22                              25                              25                               
248,806 293,567 441,285                      160,100                     253,800                   200,000                   

83 77 149 78                              105                             90                               
144,905 356,591 346,773                     139,277                    250,000                   200,000                   

154 180 172                               160                             105                             125                              
188,474 63,596 441,285                      378,988                   253,800                   250,000                   

4 3 3                                                                 2                                 4                                  
52 52 52                                52                              52                              52                               
49 49 49                                49                              49                              49                               

322 334 310                               350                            378                            395                             
1,014,095 945,568 1,166,527                    486,593                   1,800,000                 2,000,000                

400 354 347                              358                            318                             350                             
159 283 451                               654                            1,061                          1,110                           

10 17 19                                 25                              36                              40                               
71 85 110                                113                              125                             129                              
20 22 N/A N/A N/A N/A

11,000 12,056 14,488                         17,572                       14,918                        15,500                       
1,922 1,958 2,029                          2 ,066                        

269 287 330                              305                            304                            338                             
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Schedule 14 
El Paso County 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function/Program 1998 1999 2000
Sheriff
  Patrol units and other vehicles 194 201 194

Department of Transportation
  Paved roads (miles) 810.88 837.32 856.8
  Gravel roads (miles 1077 1068.38 1067.95

Engineering
  M iles of road graveled 50 37 35
  Drainage crosspans constructed 17 29 20
  Feet of curb, gutter or sidewalks 4,270 1,900 2,110

Parks
  Acres of Regional Parks, Recreation areas
    and conservation lands 3,247 * *
  Acres of Other Parks/Properties 648 * *
  M iles of Regional, Park & Nature Trails 57.1 * *
  County Office Sites (landscape maintenance) 9 17 *

Facilities
  Number of buildings maintained * 72 *
  Square feet total maintained * 2,200,000 *

County Fairgrounds
  Buildings 18 18 18
  Stadium 1 1 1
  Lighted outdoor dance floor 1 1 1
  Outdoor arena 1 1 1
  Indoor arena 1 1 1

Data Source:
El Paso County Financial Capital Assets Records
El Paso County Department of Transportation
El Paso County Parks Department
El Paso County Sheriff's Office
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2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

210 204 185 196 214 226 210

858.12 878.67 894.05 894 900 930 921
1073.12 1073.68 1076.41 1075 1078 1073 1077

6 37 60 65 80 66 50
26 12 14 9 26 28 31

1,120 7,344 2,613 1,566 6,385 28,459 9,500

4,000 5,000 5,000 5,300 5,500 5,900 6,900

70 80 85.0 85 85 87 93
17 17 17 10 10 11 11

72 120 121 121 124 118 120
2,200,000 2,200,000 2,246,207 2,246,207 2,414,566 2,343,423 2,124,011

18 18 18 18 18 18 18
1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1
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IV. SINGLE AUDIT SECTION



168      County of El Paso – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 









Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal Control over Compliance in 
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 











Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Federal
CFDA Federal

Number Expenditures
Office of National Drug Policy
Rocky M ountain High Intensity Drug Trafficking 07.xxx 352,263$           

Total 352,263             

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through Colorado Department of Human Services

Food Stamps 10.551 45,649,540
Food Stamps Administration 10.561 1,508,831

Passed through Colorado State Forest Service
Bureau of Land M anagement 10.664 4,850                

Total 47,163,221

U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Passed through Colorado Department of Local Affairs

Community Development Block Grant 14.228 663                   
Total 663                   

U.S. Department of Criminal Justice
Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms 16.012 4,108                
Project Exile 16.575 43,638               
Comprehensive Drug Enforcement Program 16.579 99,798               
Bullet Proof Vest Program 16.607 36,667               
Community Gun Violence Prosecution Program 16.609 9,241                
COPS Secure our Schools 16.710 16,091               
Women/Safe Havens: Supervised Visitation and Safe Exchange 16.527 157,699             

Pass through Colorado Springs Police Department
2005 Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 69,394               
Anti-Gang Initiative Grant 16.744 10,412               

Total 447,049             

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title

(Continued)
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El Paso County, Colorado 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards - Continued 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Federal
CFDA Federal

Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Labor
Passed through Colorado Department of Labor and Employment

Wagner-Peyser Employment Services 17.207 1,214,942          
Workforce Investment Act Title I Adult Program 17.258 2,049,180          
Workforce Investment Act Title I Youth Program 17.259 1,490,186          
Workforce Investment Act Title I Dislocated Worker Program 17.260 1,504,031          
Workforce Investment Act NEG M ilitary Grant 17.260 952,543             

Passed through State of Colorado
Disabled Program Navigator 17.266 18,708               

Disabled Veteran's Program 17.801 76,162               
Local Veteran's Employment 17.804 8,736                

Total 7,314,488          

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through Colorado Department of Transportation

ISTEA 20.205 337,221             

Seatbelt Enforcement Program 20.600 19,979               
Total 357,200             

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Colorado Department Public Health & Environment

Grants for Injury Control Research Centers 93.136 2,625                

Passed through Colorado Department of Human Services
Promoting Safe & Stable Families 93.556 375,391             
TANF 93.558 12,384,699         
Title IV-D Administration 93.563 3,174,604          
CSE Research 93.564 7,504                
Low Income Energy Assistance Programs 93.568 3,371,482          
Child Care and Development Block Grant - Discretionary Fund 93.575 3,084,427          
Child Care M andatory and M atching Funds of the Child Care
  and Development Fund 93.596 4,317,820          
Title IV-B 93.645 542,087             
Title IV-E 93.658 5,191,914          
Adoption 93.659 3,521,968          
Adjustment to Federal Assistance 93.xxx (23,952)              
Title XX 93.667 2,044,800          
Title IV-E (Independent Living) 93.674 196,511             
Title XIX 93.778 1,788,529          

(Continued)

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title



190      County of El Paso – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 

El Paso County, Colorado 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards - Continued 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Federal
CFDA Federal

Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (Continued)
Passed through Colorado Department of Local Affairs

Community Service Block Grant 93.569 507,786             
Total 40,488,193         

Social Security Administration
Passed through Colorado Department of Education

Social Security Research and Demonstration 96.007 228,200             
Total 228,200             

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through Colorado Division of Emergency M anagement

Federal Emergency M anagement Agency (FEM A) under 
Presidentially-declared Emergency FEM A-EM -3270-CO 97.036 160,159             

Emergency M anagement Performance Grant 97.042 63,325               

Buffer Zone Protection Program (BZPP) 97.078 25,730               
Total 249,214             

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 96,600,491$      

The following note is an integral part of this schedule.

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of El Paso County,
Colorado, and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OM B Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and with the
requirements of the State of Colorado Department of Human Services for reporting electronic benefit transactions.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of,
the basic financial statements.

Note 2. Pass Through

El Paso County does not pass through funds to sub-recipients

Program or Cluster Title
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/




